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Narrative

Purpose: To authorize and award a purchase order for the contract renewal of Annual Maintenance and
Support for AssetWorks AIM Software, utilized by various Nassau County Agencies, including the Department
of Information Technology, Department of Public Works, Consfituent Affairs.

Discussion: The Department of Shared Services, Office of Purchasing has determined that this is a sole source
procurement. AssetWorks is the only vendor who exclusively manufactures, sells and distiibutes the Annual
Maintenance and Support for the AssetWorks Software System. AIM is a sophisticated data base built for
tracking and management of work orders. Once the datais entered this sofiware allows you to create
reports. These reports are then used to generate bills to FEMA and to generate charges for capital charge
backs as well as generate bills for charge backs to departments facilitating the abllity to see the types and
amount of work is being done at various iocations. Additionally, this AIM software fracks all work orders af
DPW Facilities Management ana DPW Capital Projects for fimecard charge backs and enables the DPW
permit office to issues road opening and sewer permits. This also allows the County Executive's office fo frack
all complaints received from constituents.

Impact on Funding: The maximum amount authorized under this purchase order shall be One Hundred Nine
Thousand Three Hundred Fighty-Six Dollars and Sixty-Four Cents ($109,386.64.) from General Fund
[TGEN1430/DESAS.

Recommendation: Depariment of Shared Services, Office of Purchosmg recol
order to AssetWorks as a sole scurce provider. '
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COUNTY OF NASSAU

INTER — DEPARTMENTAL MEMO

TO: CLERK OF THE COUNTY LEGISLATURE A-33-2023

FROM: MELISSA GALLUCCI - COMMISSIONER OF SHARED SERVICES
DATE: OCTOBER 2, 2023
SUBJECT: RESOLUTION- DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

THIS RESOLUTION IS RECOMMENDED BY THE COMMISSIONER OF SHARED SERVICES
TO AUTHORIZE AN AWARD AND TO EXECUTE A PURCHASE ORDER IN THE AMOUNT OF
ONE HUNDRED NINE THOUSAND THREE HUNDRED EIGHTY-SIX DOLLARS and SIXTY-
FOUR CENTS ($109.386.64) ON BEHALF OF THE DEPARTMENT OF PUBLICS WORKS AND
VARIOUS NASSAU COUNTY AGENCIES TO ASSETWORKS FOR ANNUAL MAINTENANCE
/SUPPORT OF ASSETWORKS AIM SOFTWARE SYSTEM.

THE ABOVE-DESCRIBED DOCUMENT ATTACHED HERETO IS FORWARDED FOR YOUR
REVIEW AND APPROVAL AND SUBSEQUENT TRANSMITTAL TO THE RULES COMMITTEE

FOR INCLUSION IN ITS AGENDA.
Mol 2ol

MELISSA GALLUCCI
COMMISSIONER OF SHARED SERVICES

VB: gb
ENCIL: (1) STAFT SUMMARY
(2) DISCLOSURE STATEMENT
(3) RESOLUTION
(4) BID SUMMARY
(5) BID PROPOSAL
(6) CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
(7) RECOMMENDATION OF AWARD
(8) POLITICAL CONTRIBUTION FORM




RULES RESOLUTION 2023

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COMMISSIONER OF SHARED SERVICES
TO AWARD AND EXECUTE A BLANKET PURCHASE ORDER BETWEEN THE
COUNTY OF NASSAU, ACTING ON BEHALF OF THE DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC

WORKS AND VARIOUS NASSAU COUNTY AGENCIES, AND ASSETWORKS.

WHEREAS, the NASSAU COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF SHARED SERVICES, OFFICE OF
PURCHASING is representing to the Rules Committee, that the firm AssetWorks, is a sole source
provider and meets all specifications for the product described in the said contract as determined by the

Commissioner of Shared Services.

RESOLVED, that the Rules Committee of the Nassau County Legislature authorizes the

Commissioner of Shared Services to award and execute the said Purchase Order with AssetWorks.



COUNTY OF NASSAU
POLITICAL CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTICON DISCLOSURE FORM

1. Has the vendor or any corporate officers of the vendor provided campaign contributions pursuant to the New York Stata
Election Law in {a) the period beginning April 1, 2016 and ending on the date of this disclosure, or (b), beginning April 1, 2018, the
period beginning two years prior to the date of this disclosure and ending on the date of this disclosure, to the campaign
committees of any of the following Nassau County elected officials or to the campaign committees of any candidates for any of
the following Nassau County elected offices: the County Executive, the County Clerk, the Caomptroller, the District Attorney, or any

County Legislator?

YES [ 1 NO [X] If yes, to what campaigh committee?

Electronically signed and certified at the date and time indicated by:
J. Lynn Sons [LYNN.SONS@ASSETWORKS.COM]

Dated: 09/27/2023 06:30:19 am Vendor: AssetWorks Inc

Title: Compliance Manager
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Business History Form
The contract shall be awarded to the responsible praposer who, at the discretion of the County, taking into considaration the
reliability of the proposer and the capacity of the propaser to perform the services required by the County, offers the best value
to the County and who will best promote the public interest.
In addition to the submission of proposals, each proposer shall complete and submit this questionnaire. The guestionnaire shall
be filled out by the owner of a sole proprietorship or by an authaorized representative of the firm, corporation or partnarship
submitting the Proposal.
NOTE: All questions require a response, even if response is “none” or “not-applicahle.” No blanks,

{USE ADDITIONAL SHEETS IF NECESSARY TC FULLY ANSWER THE FOLLOWING QUESTIONS).

Date: 09/27/2023

1) Proposer’s Legal Name: AssetWorks

2) Address of Place of Business: 998 Old Eagle School Road, Suite 1215

State/Province/ Zip/Postal
City: Wayne Territory: PA Code: 19087
Country: US
3) Mailing Address (if different):
State/Province/ Zip/Postal
City: Territory: Code:
Country:
Phone:
[ Does the business own or rent its facilities? R If other, please provide details:
4) Dun ang Bradstreet number: 828548961
5) Federal I.D. Number: 46-0521049
6) The proposeris a: Corporation (Describe)
7) Does this business share office space, staff, or equipment expanses with any other business?
| YES [ ] NO [X] If yes, please provide details:
8) Does this business control one or more other businesses?
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YES [ ] NO [X] If yes, please provide details:

9) Does this business have one or more affiliates, and/or is it a subsidiary of, or controlled by, any other business?
YES [X] NO [] If yes, please provide details:

AssetWorks is a standalone subsidiary of Trapeze Software Group Inc which is 100% owned by the ultimate parent;
Constellation Software Inc., a publicly traded corporation on the Toronto stock exchange

10)  Has the proposer ever had a bond or surety cancelled or forfeited, or a contract with Nassau County or any other
government entity terminated?
YES [ ] NO [X] If yes, state the name of bonding agency, (if a bond), date, amount of bond and reasan for such
cancellation or forfeiture: or details regarding the termination {if a contract).

11)  Has the proposer, during the past seven years, been declared bankrupt?
YES [ ] NO [X] If yes, state date, court jurisdiction, amount of liabilities and amount of assets

12)  Inthe past five years, has this business and/or any of its owners and/or officers and/or any affiliated business, been the
subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation by any federal, state or local prosecuting or
investigative agency? And/or, in the past 5 years, have any owner and/or officer of any affiliated business been the
subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation by any federal, state or local prosecuting or
investigative agency, where such investigation was related to activities performed at, for, or on behalf of an affiliated
business.

YES [ ] NO [X] If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

13) In the past 5 years, has this business and/or any of its owners and/or officers and/or any affiliated business been the
subject of an investigation by any government agency, including but not limited to federal, state and local regulatory
agencies? And/or, in the past 5 years, has any owner and/or officer of an affiliated business been the subject of an
investigation by any government agency, including but not limited to federal, state and local regulatory agencies, for
matters pertaining to that individual’s position at or relationship to an affiliated business.

YES [ ] NO [X] If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

14) Has any current or former director, owner or officer or managerial employee of this business had, either before or during
such person's employment, or since such employment if the charges pertained to events that allegedly occurred during
the time of employment by the submitting business, and allegedly related to the conduct of that business:

a) Any felony charge pending?
YES [ 1 NO [X] If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

b) Any misdemeanor charge pending?
YES [ ] NO [X] If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.
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¢} In the past 10 years, you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of any felony and/or any other crime, an element of
which relates te truthfulness or the underlying facts of which related to the conduct of business?

YES [ ] NO [X] If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

d} In the past 5 years, been convicted, after trial or by plea, of a misdemeanor?
YES [ ] NO [X] If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

e} In the past 5 years, been found in viclation of any administrative, statutory, or regulatory provisions?
YES [ ] NO [X] If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

15) In the past {5) years, has this business or any of its owners or officers, or any other affiliated business had any sanction
imposed as a result of judicial or administrative proceedings with respect to any professional license held?
YES [ ] NO [X] If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

16)  For the past (5) tax years, has this business failed to file any required tax returns or failed to pay any applicable federal,
state or local taxes or other assessed charges, including but not limited to water and sewer charges?
YES [ ] NO [X] If yes, provide details for each such year. Provide a detailed response to all
questions checked ‘YES'. If you need more space, photocopy the appropriate page and attach it to the questionnaire.

17 Conflict of Interest:

a) Please disclose any conflicts of interest as outlined below. NOTE: If no conflicts exist, please expressly state “No
conflict exists.”
(i} Any material financial relationships that your firm or any firm employee has that may create a conflict of
interest or the appearance of a conflict of interest in acting on behalf of Nassau County.
No conflicts exist. If a conflict of interest should arise we waould take the proper measures to correct the
situation,

(i)} Any family relationship that any employee of your firm has with any County public servant that may create a
conflict of interest or the appearance of a conflict of interest in acting on behalf of Nassau County.

No conflicts exist. Shauld AssetWorks hire an employee with a family relationship with a county public servant
that might be construed as a possible conflict of interest we would prohibit that employee from being involved in
any way with bidding, billing, payment or any other function with the county. ‘

(iii) Any other matter that your firm believes may create a conflict of interest or the appearance of a conflict of
interest in acting on behalf of Nassau County.
No conflicts exist and AssetWorks reaffirms its commitment to this highest ethics and business best practices.

b) Please describe any procedures your firm has, or would adopt, to assure the County that a conflict of interest
would not exist for your firm in the future.
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No conflicts exist. AssetWorks has in place as part of its Risk Assessment, an internal audit which reviews all new
hires for potential conflicts. Additionally, AssetWaorks provides ethics training to new hires and our executives
undergo annual Ethics, Practice and Policy fraining as part of the CSI 1509001 recertification.

A include a resume or detailed description of the Proposer’s professional qualifications, demonstrating extensive
experience in your profession. Any prior similar experiences, and the results of these experiences, must be identified.

Have you previously uploaded the below information under in the Document Vault?
YES[ ] NO [X]

s the propaser an individual?
YES [ ] NO [X] Should the proposer be other than an individual, the Proposal MUST include:

i) Date of formation;

| 09/08/2008

ii) Name, addresses, and position of al! persons having a financial interest in the company, including shareholders,
members, general or limited partner. If none, explain.

No one person owns more than 10% of the ultimate parent, Constellation Software Inc., a publicly traded
corporation on the Toronto stock exchange

i)  Name, address and position of all officers and directors of the company. If none, explain.

Gordon Smith, Vice President
Steven Occhiolini, Vice President of Finance
Robert Hallett, General Manager

iv) State of incorporation {if applicable);

| DE

v) The number of employees in the firm;

| 283

vi) Annual revenue of firm;

| 53000000

vii)  Summary of relevant accomplishments

| Industry leading provider of enterprise asset maintenance management for fleets, facilities and fixed assets

viiij}  Copies of all state and local licenses and permits.

B. Indicate number of years in business.
| 43
C. Provide any other information which would be appropriate and helpful in determining the Proposer’s capacity and

reliability to perform these services.

AssetWorks is the industry leading provider of enterprise asset maintenance management for fleets, facilities and fixed
assels
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Provide names and addresses for no fewer than thrae references for whom the Proposer has provided similar services or

who are qualified to evaluate the Proposer’s capability to perform this work.

Company
Contact Person
Address

City

Country
Telephone

Fax #

E-Mail Address

Company
Contact Person
Address

City

Country
Telephone

Fax #

E-Mail Address

Company
Contact Person
Address

City

Country
Telephone

Fax #

E-Mail Address
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State of New lersey

Larry Mantuano

1035 Parkway Ave

Trenton

us

{609) 633-0608

lawrence.mantuano@tireas.state.nj.us

State of New York DOT

State/Province/Territory

NJ

Clifford Thomas

50 Wood Rd, Pod 502

Albany

Us

(518) 457-7475

clifford.thomas@dot.ny.gov

County of Westchester

State/Province/Territory

NY

Lubna Zeidan

Lake Street Garage

White Plains

Us

{914) 995-7771

lgz1@westchestergov.com

State/Province/Territory

NY
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I, 1 Judith Lynn Sons | , hereby acknowledge that a materially false statement
willfully or fraudulently made in connection with this form may result in rendering the submitting business entity and/or any
affiliated entities non-responsible, and, in addition, may subject me to criminal charges.

l, | Judith Lynn Sons L , hereby certify that! have read and understand all the

items contained in this form; that | supplied full and complete answers to each item therein to the best of my knowiedge,
information and belief; that | will notify the County in writing of any change in circumstances occurring after the submission of
this form; and that all information supplied by me is true to the best of my knowledge, information and belief. | understand that
the County will rely on the information supplied in this form as additional inducement to enter into a contract with the
submitting business entity.

CERTIFICATION

A MATERIALLY FALSE STATEMENT WILLFULLY OR FRAUDULENTLY MADE IN CONNECTION WITH THIS QUESTIONNAIRE MAY
RESULT IN RENDERING THE SUBMITTING BUSINESS ENTITY NOT RESPONSIBLE WITH RESPECT TO THE PRESENT BID OR FUTURE
BIDS, AND, IN ADDITION, MAY SUBJECT THE PERSON MAKING THE FALSE STATEMENT TO CRIMINAL CHARGES.

Name of submitting business: AssetWorks

Electronically signed and certified at the date and time indicated by:
Judith Lynn Sons LYNN.SONS@ASSETWORKS.COM

Compliance Manager

Title

09/27/2023

Date
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PRINCIPAL QUESTIONNAIRE FORM

All questions on these questionnaires must be answered by all officers and any individuals who hold a ten percent (10%) or
greater ownership interest in the proposer. Answers typewritten or printed in ink. If you need more space to answer any
question, make as many photocopies of the appropriate page(s) as necessary and attach them to the questionnaire.

COMPLETE THIS QUESTIONNAIRE CAREFULLY AND COMPLETELY. FAILURE TO SUBMIT A COMPLETE QUESTIONNAIRE MAY MEAN
THAT YOUR BID OR PROPOSAL WILL BE REJECTED AS NON-RESPONSIVE AND IT WILL NOT BE CONSIDERED FOR AWARD

1 Principal Name: Robert Hallett
Date of birth: 09/18/1968
Home address: 120 Gold Mill Place
State/Province/ Zip/Postal
City: Canton Territory: GA Code: 30114
Country: us
Business Address: 998 Cld Eagle School Rd
State/Province/ Zip/Postal
City: Wayne Territory: PA Code: 19087
Country Us
Telephone: 6106879202
Other present address{es):
State/Province/ Zip/Postal
City: Territory: Code:
Country:
Telephone:

List of other addresses and telephone numbers attached

2. Positions held in submitting business and starting date of each {check all applicable)
President Treasurer
Chairman of Board Shareholder
Chief Exec. Officer Secretary
Chief Financial Officer Partner
Vice President
{Other)
Type Other

Description General Manager
Start Date  05/02/2012

3. Do you have an equity interest in the business submitting the questionnaire?
YES [ ] NO [X] If Yes, provide details.
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4, Are there any outstanding loans, guarantees or any other form of security or lease or any other type of contribution
made in whole or in part between you and the business submitting the questionnaire?
YES [ ] NO [X] If Yes, provide details.

5. Within the past 3 years, have you been a principal owner or officer of any business or notfor-profit organization other
than the one submitting the questionnaire?
YES [ ] NO [X] If Yes, provide details.

6. Has any governmental entity awarded any contracts to a business or organization listed in Section 5 in the past 3 years
while you were a principal owner or officer?
YES [ ] NO [X] If Yes, provide details.

NOTE: An affirmative answer is required helow whether the sanction arose automatically, by operation of law, or as a result of
any action taken by a government agency. Provide a detailed response to all questions checked "YES". If you need more space,
photocopy the appropriate page and attach it to the questionnaire.

7. In the past (5) years, have you and/or any affiliated businesses or not-for-profit organizations listed in Section 5 in which
you have been a principal owner or officer:
a. Been debarred by any government agency from entering into contracts with that agency?
YES [ ] NO [X] If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

b. Been declared in default and/or terminated for cause on any contract, and/or had any contracts cancelled for

cause?
YES [ ] NO [X] If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

C. Been denied the award of a contract and/or the opportunity to bid on a contract, including, but not limited to,

failure to meet pre-qualification standards?
YES [ ] NO [X] If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

d. Been suspended by any government agency from entering into any contract with it; and/or is any action pending
that could formally debar or otherwise affect such business’s ability to hid or propose on contract?
YES [ ] NO [X] If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

8. Have any of the businesses or organizations listed in response to Question 5 filed a bankruptey petition and/or been the
subject of involuntary bankruptcy proceedings during the past 7 years, and/or for any portion of the last 7 year period,
been in a state of bankruptcy as a result of bankruptcy proceedings initiated more than 7 years ago and/or is any such
business now the subject of any pending bankruptcy proceedings, whenever initiated?

YES [ ] NO [X] If 'Yes', provide details for each such instance. {Provide a detailed response to all questions check "Yes". If
you need more space, photocopy the appropriate page and attached it to the questionnaire.)
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a. Is there any felony charge pending against you?

YES [ ] NO [X] If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

b. Is there any misdemeanor charge pending against you?
YES [ ] NO [X] If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

C. Is there any administrative charge pending against you?
YES [ ] NO [X] If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

d. in the past 10 years, have you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of any felony, or of any other crime, an
efement of which relates to truthfulness or the underlying facts of which related to the conduct of business?
YES [ ] NO [X] If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

e. In the past 5 years, have you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of a misdemeanor?
YES [ ] NO [X] If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

f. In the past 5 years, have you been found in violation of any administrative or statutory charges?

YES [ ] NO [X] if yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

10 In addition to the information provided in response to the previous questions, in the past 5 years, have you been the
subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation by any federal, state or local prosecuting or
investigative agency and/or the subject of an investigation where such investigation was related to activities performed
at, for, or on behalf of the submitting business entity and/or an affiliated business listed in response to Question 57
YES [ ] NO [X] If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

11 In addition to the information provided, in the past 5 years has any business or organization listed in response to
Question 5, been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation and/or any other type of
investigation by any government agency, including but not limited to federal, state, and local regulatory agencies while
you were a principal owner or officer?

YES [ ] NO [X] If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

12 Inthe past 5 years, have you or this business, or any other affiliated business listed in response to Question 5 had any
sanction imposed as a result of judicial or administrative proceedings with respect to any professional license held?
YES [ ] NO [X] If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

13 For the past 5 tax years, have you failed to file any required tax returns or failed to pay any applicable federal, state or
lacal taxes or other assessed charges, including but not [imited to water and sewer charges?
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YES [ ] NO [X] If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.
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I, | Raobert Hallett | , hereby acknowledge that a materially false statement
willfully or fraudulently made in connection with this form may result in rendering the submitting business entity and/or any
affiliated entities non-responsible, and, in addition, may subject me to criminal charges.

i, | Robert Hallett | , herehy certify that | have read and understand all the

items contained in this form; that | supplied full and complete answers to each item therein to the best of my knowledge,
information and belief; that | will notify the County in writing of any change in circumstances occurring after the submission of
this form; and that all information supplied by me is true to the best of my knowledge, information and belief. [ understand that
the County will rely on the information supplied in this form as additional inducement to enter into a contract with the
submitting business entity.

CERTIFICATION

A MATERIALLY FALSE STATEMENT WILLFULLY OR FRAUDULENTLY MADE IN CONNECTION WITH THIS QUESTIONNAIRE MAY
RESULT IN RENDERING THE SUBMITTING BUSINESS ENTITY NOT RESPONSIBLE WITH RESPECT TO THE PRESENT BID OR FUTURE
BIDS, AND, IN ADDITION, MAY SUBJECT THE PERSON MAKING THE FALSE STATEMENT TO CRIMINAL CHARGES.

AssetWorks Inc

Name of submitting business

Electronically signed and certified at the date and time indicated by:
Robert Hallett ROB.HALLETT @ASSETWORKS.COM

General Manager

Title

10/12/2023 12:41:56 pm

Date
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COUNTY OF NASSAU

CONSULTANT’S, CONTRACTOR'S AND VENDOR’S DISCLOSURE FORM

1. Name of the Entity: AssetWorks

Address: 998 Old Eagle School Rd, Suite 1215

City: Wayne State/Province/Territory: PA Zip/Postal Code: 19087

Country: us

2. Entity's Vendor Identification Number: 460521049

3, Type of Business: Other (specify) AssetWorks is a standalone subsidiary of
Trapeze Software Inc with the ultimate parent
of Constellation Software Inc., a publicly traded
corporation on the Toronto stock exchange

4., List names and addresses of all principals; that is, all individuals serving on the Board of Directors or comparable body, all
partners and limited partners, all corporate officers, all parties of Joint Ventures, and all members and officers of limited
liability companies {attach additional sheets if necessary):

2 File(s) uploaded: CSt Annual Report 2020.pdf, CSI Annual Report 20222_2023.pdf

5. List names and addresses of all shareholders, members, or partners of the firm. If the shareholder is not an individual, list
the individual shareholders/partners/members. If a Publicly held Corporation, include a copy of the 10K in lieu of completing
this section,

If none, explain.

Please see attached Annual Report |

6. List all affiliated and related companies and their relationship to the firm entered on line 1. above (if none, enter “None”). Attacl
a separate disclosure form for each affiliated or subsidiary company that may take part in the performance of this contract. Such
disclosure shall be updated to include affiliated or subsidiary companies not previously disclosed that participate in the
performance of the contract.

No one person owns more than 10% of the corporation. AssetWorks is 100% owned by Constellation Software Inc

7. List all lobbyists whose services were utilized at any stage in this matter {i.e., pre-bid, bid, post-bid, etc.). If none, enter “None.”
The term “lobbyist” means any and every person or arganization retained, employed or designated by any client to influence - or
promote a matter before - Nassau County, its agencies, boards, commissions, department heads, legislators or committees,
including but not limited to the Open Space and Parks Advisaory Committee and Planning Commission, Such matters include, but ar
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not limited to, requests for proposals, development or improvement of real property subject to County regulation, procurements.
The term “lobbyist” does not include any officer, director, trustee, employee, counsel or agent of the County of Nassau, or State of
New York, when discharging his or her official duties.

Are there lobbyists involved in this matter?
YES [ ] NO [X]

(a) Name, title, business address and telephone number of lobbyist(s):

(b} Describe lobbying activity of each lobbyist, See below for a complete description of lobbying activities.

(c) List whether and where the person/organization is registered as a lobbyist {e.g., Nassau County, New York
State):

8. VERIFICATION: This section must be signed by a principal of the consultant, contractor or Vendor authorized as a sighatory of th.
firm for the purpese of executing Contracts.

The undersigned affirms and so swears that he/she has read and understood the foregoing statements and they are, to his/her
knowledge, true and accurate.

Electronically signed and certified at the date and time indicated by:
Judith Lynn Sons [LYNN.SONS@ASSETWORKS.COM]

Dated: 09/27/2023 06:38:32 am

Title: Compliance Manager
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The term lobbying shall mean any attempt to influence: any determination made by the Nassau County Legislature, or any
member thereof, with respect to the introduction, nassage, defeat, or substance of any local legislation or resolution; any
determination by the County Executive to support, oppose, approve or disapprove any local legislation or resolution, whether or
not such legislation has been introduced in the County Legislature; any determination by an elected County official or an officer
or employee of the County with respect to the procurement of goods, services or construction, including the preparation of
contract specifications, including by not limited to the preparation of requests for proposals, or solicitation, award or
administration of a contract or with respect to the solicitation, award or administration of a grant, loan, or agreement involving
the disbursement of public monies; any determination made by the County Executive, County Legislature, or by the County of
Nassau, its agencies, boards, commissions, department heads or committees, including but not limited to the Open Space and
Parks Advisory Committee, the Planning Commission, with respect to the zoning, use, development or improvement of real
property subject to County regulation, or any agencies, boards, commissions, department heads or committees with respect to
requests for proposals, bidding, procurement or contracting for services for the County; any determination made by an elected
county official or an officer or employee of the county with respect o the terms of the acquisition or disposition by the county of
any interest in real property, with respect to a license or permit for the use of real property of or by the county, or with respect
to a franchise, concession or revocable consent; the proposal, adoption, amendment or rejection by an agency of any rule
having the force and effect of law; the decision to hold, timing or outcome of any rate making proceeding before an agency; the
agenda or any determination of a board or commission; any determination regarding the calendaring or scope of any legislature
oversight hearing; the issuance, repeal, modification or substance of a County Executive Order; or any determination made by
an elected county official or an officer or employee of the county to support or oppose any state or federal legislation, rule or
regulation, including any determination made to supgort or oppose that is contingent on any amendment of such legislation,
rule or regulation, whether or not such legislation has been formally introduced and whether or not such rule or regulation has
been formally proposed. ‘
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Consolidated Financial Statements
{In U.8. dollars)

CONSTELLATION
SOFTWARE INC.

For the year ended December 31, 2022 and 2021



KPMG LLP

Vaughan Metropolitan Centre
100 New Park Place

Suits 1400

Vaughan, ON Canada L4K 0J3
Telephone (805) 265-5900
Fax (905) 265-8390
wWww.kpmg.ca

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders of Constellation Software Inc.

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Constellation Software Inc.

{("the Entity"}, which comprise:

+ the consclidated statements of financial position as at December 31, 2022 and
December 31, 2021

s the consolidated statements of income (loss) for the years then ended

s the consclidated statements of comprehensive income (loss) for the years then
ended

+ the consolidated statements of changes in equity for the years then ended
+ the consolidated statements of cash flows for the years then ended

o and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting pclicies

{Hereinafter referred to as the “financial statements”).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Entity as at December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021,
and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the years then
ended in accordance with International Firancial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of our auditor’'s report,

We are independent of the Entity in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements in Canada and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

KPRAG LLP, an Ontario limited liability partnership and member firm of the KPMG global organization of independent
member firms affiliated with KPMG International Limited, a private English company limited by guarantee.
KPMG Canada provides seivices to KPMG LLP.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in cur professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2022. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opihion on these matters.

We have determined the matters described kelow to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our auditor's report.

Determination of distinct professional services performance obligation in customer
contracts containing mulitiple performance obligations and estimation of hours to
complete for certain percentage-of-completion (POC) arrangements

Description of the matter

We draw attention to Notes 2(d) and 3(k) tc the financial statements. The Entity has recognized
revenue of $6,622 million. A portion of revenue is associated with customer contracts that contain
multiple products and services such as software licenses, maintenance and other recurring
services, professional services, and hardware, The Entity uses significant judgment to assess
whether professional services scld in a customer contract are considered distinct and should be
accounted for as separate psrformance obkligations. Revenue from the license of software that
involves complex implementation cr customization that is not distinct, and/or includes sales of
hardware that is not distinct, is recognized as a combined performance obligation using the
percentage-of-completion method based primarily on labour hours. The Entity applies significant
judgment to determine the estimated hours to completion which affects the timing of revenue
recognized for profassional services and non-distinct license andfor hardware.

Why the matter is the key audit matter

We identified the determination of distinct professional services performance obligations in
customer contracts containing multiple performance obligations and the estimation of hours to
complete for certain POC arrangements, being contracts where revenue recognition is based on
estimated hours to completion, as a key audit matter. Significant auditor judgment was requirad to
evaluate the Entity's significant judgments of whether professional services are distinct or non-
distinct and the estimated hours to completion for arrangetments that are completed over an
extended period. There was significant auditor effort, involving more senicr professionals,
required to address this matter.

How the matter was addressed in the audit
The primary procedures we performed to address this key audit matter included the following:

We evaluated the design, and tested the operating effectiveness of certain cantrols over revenue
recognition including controls related to the Entity's process to identify distinct professional
services performance obligations in certain customer contracts and controls over the estimation
of hours to complete for POC arrangements, inclusive of executed contract amendments and
change orders.

For a selection of new customer contracts, we assessed the Entity’s determination of distinct/non-
distinct professional services parformance obligations, if any, by examining the contract source
documents, comparing to the Entity’s past assessments for similar contracts, and practices
observed in the Entity's industry.

For a selection of POC arrangements where revenue recognition is based on the estimated hours
to completion, we interviewed operational personnel responsible for the contract. We obtained an
understanding of the original estimated hours to completion and any increase or decrease to the
estimated hours to completion as the contract progresses and inspected correspondence such as
project planning documents and change requests, if any, between the Eniity and its customers.
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In addition, we assessed the Entity's historical ability to accurately estimate hours to conﬁpietion
by performing an analysis of a selection of completed contracts to compare actual hours incurred
upon completion tc the initial estimated hours to completion.

Evaluation of acquisition-date fair value of intangible assets acquired in the Altera
business combination

Description of the matter

We draw attention to Note 2(d), Note 3(d) 2nd Note 4(a) to the financial statements. On May 2,
2022, the Entity completed an agreement with Allscripts Healthcare Solutions (“Allscripts™) to
acquire 100% of the net assets (including the shares of certain subsidiaries) of Aliscripts
Hospitals and Large Physician Practices business segment (*Altera”}. The Entity paid cash of
$731 million less a cash holdback receivable of $4 million for aggregate consideration of $727
miflion. In connection with this transaction, the Entity recorded technology assets and customer
assets (collectively, the “intangible assets”). The Entity uses discounted cash flow methodology to
determine the fair value of the intangible assets. The acquisition date fair value for the intangible
assets was $619 million. In determining the fair value of the intangible assets at the acquisition
date, the Entity's significant assumptions include forecasted cash flows, forecasted annual
customer attrition rate, royalty rate, migration rate and the discount rates applied.

Why the matter is a key audit matter

We identified the evaluation of acquisition-date fair value of intangible assets acquired in the
Altera business combination as a key audit matter. This matter represented a significant risk of
material misstatement due to the magnitude of the balances and the high degree of estimation
uncertainty in determining the fair value of intangible assets. In addition, significant auditor
judgment and involvement of those with specialized skills and knowledge were required in
performing and evaluating the results of our procedures due to the sensitivity of the fair value of
the intangible assets to minor changes in certain significant estimates.

How the matter was addressed In the audit
The primary procedures we performed to address this key audit matter included the following:

We evaluated the appropriateness of the forecastad cash flows, annual customer attrition rate,
royalty rate and migration rate assumptions by considering past performance, industry data and
publicly available market data for comparable entities.

We involved valuations professionals with specialized skills and knowledge, who assisted in
assessing the discount rates embedded in the valuation model by comparing the transaction
internal rate of return {"IRR"}, weighted-average return on assets and the perceived risk inherent
in each intangible asset relative to the risk of the overall Entity. We assessed the IRR and
compared it to an independently calculated weighted-average cost of capital based on market
inputs.

Other Information
Management is responsible for the other information. Other information comprises:

¢«  Management's Discussion and Analysis filed with the relevant Canadian Securities
Commissions.

Qur opinion on the financial statemants does not cover the other information and we do not and
will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
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inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge ohtained in the audit and remain alert
for indications that the other information appears to ke materially misstated.

We obtained the information included in Management's Discussion and Analysis filed with the
relevant Canadian Securities Commissions as at the date of this auditor's report. If, based on
the work we have performed on this other information, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact in the auditor’s report.

We have naothing to repert in this regard,

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for
the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal controi as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Entity’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Entity or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Entity’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, out is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise fram fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of the financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

We also:

+ |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectivenass of the Entity's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

s Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Entity's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements ar, if such disclosures are inadequate, to medify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based cn the audit evidence oktained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Entity fo cease to continue as a going concern.

s Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

= Communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

e Provids those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all
relationships and ather matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

+ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Entity to express an opinion on the financial
statements, We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain sclely responsible for our audit opinion.

¢ Determine, from the matters communicated with those charged with governance, those
matters that wera of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in cur auditor's report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expeacted to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

King -
o

Chartered Professicnal Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants
The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this auditor's report is Anuj Madan,

Vaughan, Canada
March 29, 2023



CONSTELLATION SOFTWARE INC.

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

(In millions of W.S. dollars, except per share amounts. Due to rounding, numbers presented may not foot.)

December 31, 2022

December 31, 2021

Assets
Current assets:
Cash $ 811 % 763
Accounts receivable (note 21) 876 600
Unbilled revenue {note 22} 230 140
Inventories {note 5) 48 35
Other assets (note 8) 496 296
2,461 1,835
Non-current assets:
Property and equipment (note 7} 128 93
Right of use assets (note 8) 283 245
Deferred income taxes (note 18) 160 66
Other assets (note 6) 172 99
Intangible assets (note 9) 4679 3,428
5,422 3,931
Tolal assets 3 7,882 § 5,766
Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity
Current liabilities:
Debi with recourse to Consteliation Scftware Inc. {nhote 10) & 505 % 143
Debt without recourse to Constellation Software Inc. (note 11) 316 60
Redeemable preferred securities (note 12) - 7
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1,080 832
Dividends payaile (note 17) 21 22
Deferred revenue (note 22) 1,484 1,158
Provisions (note 13) 11 11
Acguisition holdback payables 159 94
Lease obligations (note 14) 96 79
Income taxes payable (note 15) 97 56
3,768 2,461
Non-current liabilities:
Debt with recourse to Constellation Sofiware Inc. {note 10) 567 561
Debt without recourse to Constellation Scftware Inc. (note 11) 586 354
Deferred income taxes (note 16) 471 436
Acquisition holdback payables 77 68
Lease obligations (hote 14) 217 190
Other ligbilities {note 6) 262 175
2,181 1,784
Total liabilities 5,949 4,245
Shareholders' equity (note 17):
Capital stock 99 99
Other equity - (179)
Accumulated other comprehensive ingome (l0ss) {150} (686)
Retained earnings 1,763 1,206
Non-controlling interests (notes 1, 12 and 28) 221 460
1,933 1,521
Subseguent events (notes 10, 17 and 29)
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity § 7,882 % 5,766

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements,



CONSTELLATION SOFTWARE INC.

Consolidated Statements of Income (Loss)
{In millions of U.S. dollars, except per share amounts, Due to rounding, numbers presented may not foot.}

Year ended December 31,

2022 2021
Revenus
License $ 320 3 287
Professional services 1,381 1,033
Hardware and other 233 176
Maintenance and other recurring 4 688 3,611
6,622 5,108
Expenses
Staff 3,639 2,695
Hardware 134 29
Third party license, maintenance and professicnal services 626 433
Occupancy 49 40
Travel, telecommunications, supplies, software and equipment 307 186
Professional fees 114 7S
Other, net 154 62
Depreciation (note 7 and 8) 143 121
Amortization of intangible assets (note 9) 676 518
5,740 4,233
Foreign exchange loss (gain) (56) 1
IRGA/TSS Membership liability revaluation charge (note 1C) 112 132
Finance and other expense (income) (note 18) 0 ()
Bargain purchase gain {note 4) {16) (2)
impairment of intangible and other nonfinancial assets {note ¢} 7 12
Redeemable preferred securities expense (income) (nofe 12) - 295
Finance costs {note 18) 110 68
156 499
Income (loss) before income taxes 725 374
Current income tax expense (recovery} {note 15) 403 257
Deferred income tax expense (racovery) (note 15) (228) 51)
Income tax expense (recovery) 175 208
Net income {loss) 551 169
Net income (loss} attributable to:
Common shareholders of Constellation Software Inc. (notes 1 and 28) 512 310
Non-controlling interests (notes 1 and 28) 33 (142)
Net income (losg) 551 169
Earnings per common share of Constellation Software Inc.

Basic and diluted (note 19} $ 24.18 $ 14.65

See accompanying notes tc the consolidated financial statements.



CONSTELLATION SOFTWARE INC.

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss)
(In millions of U1.8. dollars, except per share amounts. Due to rounding, numbers presented may not foot.)

Year ended December 31,

2022 2021
Net income (loss) $ 551 3 169
Hems that are or may be reclassified subsequently to net income {loss):

Foreign currency translation differences from foreign operations and other, net of tax (90} (41)
Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year, net of income tax {90} (41)
Tatal comprehensive income (loss) for the year § 460 3 128
Total other comprehensive income {loss} atlributable to:

Common shareholders of Constellation Software Inc. {nctes 1 and 18) (79) (16)

Non-controling interests (notes 1 and 28) {12) {25}
Total other comprehensive income {loss}) $ (90) 3 (41}
Total comprehensive income (loss) attributable to:

Common sharcholders of Constellation Software Inc. {notes 1 and 28) 433 294

Non-controlling interests (notes 1 and 28) 27 (167)
Total comprehensive income {loss) ] 460 $ 128

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial siatements.



CONSTELLATION SOFTWARE INC.

Consolidated Statement of Ghanges in Equity

{In milllons of U.S. dollars, except per share amounts. Due to rounding, numbsts presented may not foat.)

Year ended Decamber 31, 2022

Equity Attrik to O Shareholders of CSI
Capital stock  Cther equity Accumulated Retained eamings Tatal Non-contrelling Total equity
ather Interests
comprehensive
income {loss)
Balance at January 1, 2022 $ 92 $ “re) § 66) § 1,208 § 1,064 450 § 1,521
Total comprehensive income {loss) for the yesr:
Met ingeme {loss) - - 512 512 38 651
Cther comprehensive income {foss)
Foreign currency tranclation differences from
foraign opsrafions and other, net of tax - (79) - (1] {12) (90)
Tetal other comprehensive income (less)
far the year - - {79) - 73 {12} (90}
Total cumEmhensIva Income {loss) for the year - - {79} 512 433 27 460
Transaclions with owners, resorded directly in equity
Converslon of redeemable preferred securities fo suberdinale voting shares
of Topicus,com Inc, and ordinary units of Topicus Coop (nete 1 and 12} and
other related movaments - 305 (5) - a1 (301)
Nen-cenirolling interesis arising from business combinations (note 4) - - - - - 41 41
Other movements in non-cantrotling interests - - - 2 2 {6} (€3]
Dividends to shareholders of fhe Company {note 17) - - - {85) (85) - (B%)
Reclasslficafion of ather equity to retained eamings - {127y - 127 - - -
Balance at Decembor 31, 2022 3§ 99 3 . 5 {150 § 1,763 § 1713 § 22t 8 1,833

Ses noles to the caor i financial stat




CONSTELLATION SOFTWARE INC.

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Eguity
{In milions of U, S, dollars, except per share amounts. Dus to rounding, numbers presenled may not foat.)

Year ended Decembar 31, 2021

Erjulty Attributalsle to Commen Shareholders of C51

Capital stock  Other equily Accumu|ated Retained aamings Total Mon-contrailing Total equity
other Tnterests
comprehensive
income {lass}
Balanga at Japuary 1, 2021 § 9 - % 31y § 980 § 1,048 $ -8 1,048
Total comprehansive income (foss) for the year.
Net hcame (loss) - B - 3 310 {142} 169
Other comprahansive income (fass)
Forelgn currency translalion differences from
farsign aperallons and other. net of tax - - {18} - (16) {25) (41)
Total other comprehensive income {loss) for the year - - (16} - (18) (28) (41)
Total comprehansive income [loss) for the year - {16} 310 294 [167) 128
Transaclions with owners, recorded directly in equily
Spacial dividend of Topicus Subordinated Voting Shares {note 1 and 28) - (t41) (16} - {157 157 -
Jssuanee of Topicus Coop Ordinary Units o non-controlling interests (note 4) - 1) 2) - {23) 23 -
Net acquisition of non-centrolling interest associatad with acqulsitions and
other movements - (18) 0} 0 (1€) 17 1
Dividends to shareholders of the Company (note 17} - - {85) (85) - (85)
Reclasslfication of Redeemable preferred securities of Topicus Coop from
liabilities to non-controfiing inierest - - - - 434 434
Accrued dividends to preference it holders of Topicus Goop {note 123 - - - - 5y 5
Balance at December 31, 2021 $ 99 (78] § {66) $ 1,206 $ 1,061 § 460§ 1,521

Ses accompanying notes 1o the consolidaied financial statements.
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CONSTELLATION SOFTWARE INC.

Consoiidated Statements of Cash Flows

{In millions of U.S. dollars, except per share amounts. Due to rounding, numbers presented may not foot.)

Year ended December 31,

2022 2021
Cash flows from (used in} operating activiies:
Net income {loss) 551 1689
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 143 121
Amortization of intangible assets 676 518
IRGA/TSS Membership liability revaluation charge 112 132
Finance and other expense {Income}) 0 €8]
Bargain purchase (gain) (16) 2)
Impairment of intangible and other non-financial assets 7 12
Redeemable preferred securities expense {income) {note 12) - 295
Finance costs 110 68
Income tax expense (recovery) 175 206
Foreign exchange loss {gain) {56) 1
Change in non-cash operating assets and liabilities
exclusive of effects of business combinations (note 26} (80) 45
Income taxes paid {343) (257)
Net cash flows from {used in) operating activities 1,287 1,300
Cash flows from {used in) financing activities:
Interest paid on lease obligations (11) (9
Interest paid on debt (74} {40)
Increase (decrease) in CSl facility (note 10) 322 -
Increase (decrease) in Topicus revolving credit debt facility without recourse to CSI 91 30
Proceeds from issuance of debt faciities without recourse to CS| 476 176
Repayments of debt facilities without recourse te CSI (102) 6)
Other financing activities 3y 3
Credit facility transaction cosis (7) (6}
Payments of lease obligations (94) (83)
Distribution to the Joday Group (rote 10) (23) (22)
Dividends paid fo redeemable preferred security holders (W4} -
Dividends paid ioc common shareholders of the Company (85) {85)
Net cash flows from {used In} in financing activities 483 41)
Cash flows from (used in) investing activities:
Acruisition of businesses (note 4) (1,633) {1,224)
Cash cbtained with acquired businesses (note 4} 216 153
Post-acquisition seltlement payments, net of receipts (148) (145)
Receipt of additional subscription amount from the sellers of Taopicus.com B.V. - 33
Purchases of other investmenis (97} (44}
Proceeds from sales of other investments B 13
Interest, dividends and other proceeads received 5 5
Property and equipment purchased {41) (29)
Net cash flows from (used in) investing activities {1,694) (1,238)
Effect of foreign currency on
cash (39) {16)
Increase (decrease) in cash 48 5
Cash, beginning of period 763 758
Cash, end of period 811 763

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements,
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CONSTELLATION SOFTWARE INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemenis

{In millions of U.S. dollars or specified currency, except per share amounts and as otherwise indicated.)
{Due to rounding, numbers presented may not foot.)

Years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1. Reporting entity 16. Deferred tax assets and liabilities

2. Basis of presentation 17. Capital and other components of equity

3. Significant accounting policias 18. Finance and other expense (income) and finance costs
4.  Business acquisitions 19. Earnings per share

5.  Inventories 20. Capital risk management

6.  Other assets and liabilities 21. Financial risk management and financial instruments
7. Property and equipment 22. Revenue

8. Right of use assets 23. Operating segments

9. Intangible assets and goodwill 24,  Confingencies

10. Debt with recourse to CSI 25. Guaraniees

11. Debt without recourse to CSI 28. Changes in non-cash operating working capital

12. Redeemable preferred securities 27. Related parties

13. Provisions 28. Non-controlling interests

14, Lease obligations 29. Subsequent events

15, Income taxes

12



CONSTELLATION SOFTWARE INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

{In millions of U.S. dollars or specified currency, except per share amounts and as otherwise indicated.)
(Due to rounding, numbers presented may not foot.)

Years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

1. Reporting entity

Constellation Software Inc. is a company domiciled in Canada. The address of Constellation Software Inc.'s
registered office is 20 Adelaide Street East, Suite 1200, Toronto, Ontario, Canada. The consalidated financial
statements of Constellation Software Inc. for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 comprise Constellation
Software Inc. and its subsidiaries (fogether referred to as "Constellation”, *CSI", or the "Company”) and the
Company's interest in associates. The Company is engaged principally in the development, installation and
customization of software as well as in the provisioning of related professional services and support for customers
globally across over 100 diverse markets.

Preferred Share Investment in Topicus.com Ingc. (“Topicus”)

At the beginning of 2022, the Company owned 39,412,385 Topicus Preferred Shares. The Topicus Preferred
Shares were non-voting and under certain conditions, prior to the Notification of Conversion, were redeemabie at
the option of CSI for a redemption price of approximately EUR 19.06 per share. The redemption price was either
to be seftled in cash or through the issuance of a variable number of Topicus Suberdinate Voting Shares based on
the terms of the Topicus Preferred Shares, or any combination thereof. The Topicus Preferred Shares were also
convertible into Topicus Subordinate Voting Shares at a conversion ratio of 1:1. The Topicus Preferred Shares
entitled CSI to a fixed annual cumulative dividend of 5% per annum on the initial Topicus Preferred Share value of
approximately EUR 19.06 per share.

On February 1, 2022, the Topicus Preferred Shares were converted to Topicus Subordinate Voting Shares.
Subsequent to the conversion, CS| continues to consolidate Topicus and now reflects an equity interest of 60.65%
{December 31, 2021 — 30.3%) in Topicus and a non-controlling interest of 39.35% (December 31, 2021 — 69.7%).

2. Basis of presentation
{a) Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (‘IFRS"), issued and outstanding as of March 29, 2023, the date the Board of Directors approved such
financial statements.

{b) Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain assets and
liabifities initially recognized in connection with business combinations, and certain financial instruments and
derivative financial instruments, which are measured at fair value.

{c) Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in U.S. dollars, which is Constellation Software Inc.’s functional
currency.

13



CONSTELLATION SOFTWARE INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

{In millions of U.S. dollars or specified currency, except per share amounts and as otherwise indicated.)
{Due to rounding, numbers prasented may not foot.)

Years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

{d) Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongeing basis. Estimates are based on historical
experience and other assumptions that are considered reasonable in the circumstances. The actual amount or
values may vary in certain instances from the assumptions and estimates made. Changes will be recorded, with
corresponding effect in profit or loss, when, and if, better information is obtained.

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a risk of resulting in a material adjustment
within the next financial year are included in the following notes:

Note 3(k) - Revenue recognition
Note 3(a)(i) - Business combinations
Note 3(m) - Income taxes

Note 3{d) - Intangible assets

Note 24 - Contingencies

Critical judgements that the Company has made in the process of applying accounting policies disclosed herein
and that have a significant effect on the amcunts recognized in the consolidated financial statements relate to the
(i} determination of functional currencies for Constellaticn’s subsidiaries and, most notably, in respect of
businesses acquired during the period; (i) allocating the purchase price to the fair value of acquired net assets
{iil) assessment as to whether professional services in multiple-performance obligation arrangements are distinct
of other performance ohligatichs and determination of the estimated hours to complete customer contracts
accounted for using the percentage of completion method; {iv) recognition of deferred tax assets; and (v)
recognition of provisions and contingent consideration liabilities.

* Functional currency — the Company applies judgement in situations where primary and secondary
indicators are mixed. Primary indicators such as the currency that mainly influence sales prices are given
priority before considering secondary indicators.

. Business Combinations - Estimates and judgments are used when allocating the purchase price to the fair
value of acquired net assets (specifically to the acquired technology assets and customer relationship
assets) in business combinations. The Company estimates the fair value of technology and customer
relationships acquired in a business combination based on the income approach. The income approach is
a valuation technique that calculates the fair value of an intangible asset based on the present value of
future cash flows that the asset can be expected to generate over its remaining useful life. For significant
business combinations, significant estimates and judgments include forecasted cashflows, forecasted
annual customer attrition rate, royalty rates, migration rate and the discount rates used to estimate the fair
value of the acquired intangible assets. Changes in these estimates and judgments could result in
significant changes to the valuation of the intangible assets.

. Revenue Recognition - The Company uses significant judgment to assess whether professional services
sold in a customer contract are considered distinct and should be accounted for as separate performance
obligations. Non-distinct professional services are combinad with other goods or services to form a single
performance obligation. The Company also applies significant judgment to determine the estimated hours
to completion which affects the timing of revenue recognized for professional services and non-distinct

14



CONSTELLATION SOFTWARE INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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license and hardware. Estimated hours to completion are continually and routinely revised based on
changes in the progress of customer contracts.

* Deferred tax assets - the recognition of deferred tax assets is based on forecasts of future taxable profit.
The measurement of future taxable profit for the purposes of determining whether or not to recegnize
deferred tax assets depends on many factors, including the Company's ability to generate such profits and
the implementation of effective tax planning strategies. The occurrence or non-occcurrence of such events
in the future may lead to significant changes in the measurement of deferred tax assets. '

) Contingent consideration liablities - contingent consideration liabilities are initially recorded on the date of
a business combination and are payable on the achievement of certain financial targets in the post-
acquisition periods. The obligation for contingent consideration is recorded at its estimated fair value at the
various acquisition dates and is recorded at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The estimated
fair value of the applicable contingent consideration is calculated using the estimated financial outcome and
resulting expected contingent consideration to be paid and inclusion of a discount rate as appropriate.

The Company is closely monitoring the impact of COVID-19 on all aspects of its business. COVID-19 was declared
a global pandemic by the World Health Organization on March 11, 2020. The COVID-18 pandemic has had
disruptive effects in countries in which the Company operates and has adversely impacted many of its business
units’ operations to date, including through the cancellation by certain customers of their ongoing software
maintenance contracts and the suspension or cancellation of new software purchases. The pandemic may also
have an adverse impact cnh many of the Company’s customers, including their ability to satisfy ongoing payment
obligations to the Company, which could increase the Company's bad debt exposure. The future impacts of the
pandemic and any resulting eccnomic impact are largely unknown and rapidly evolving. It is possible that the
COVID-19 pandemic, the measures taken by the governments of countries affected and the resulting economic
impact may continue to adversely affect the Company’s results of operations, cash flows and financial position as
well as its customers in future periods, and this impact could be material. During the year ended December 31,
2022, the Company recorded income of $2 (December 31, 2021 - $17) relating to government grants from various
government authorities relating to the pandemic within “Other, net” expenses in the consolidated statements of
income {loss).

3. Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set cut below have been applied consistantly to all periods presented in these consolidated
financial statements unless otherwise indicated.

The significant accounting policies have been applied consistently by the Campany's subsidiaries.
(a)} Basis of consolidation
(i) Business combinations

Acquisitions have been accounted for using the acquisition method required by IFRS 3 Business Combinations.
Goadwill arising on acgquisitions is measured as the fair value of the consideration transferred including the
recognized amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree, if any, less the net recognized amount of the
estimated fair value of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed (subject to certain exemptions to fair
value measurement principles such as deferred tax assets or liabilities), all measured as of the acquisition date,
When the consideration transferrad is less than the estimated fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed,
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a bargain purchase gain is recognized immediately in the consclidated statements of income (loss). Transaction
costs that the Company incurs in connection with a business combination are expensed as incurred.

The Company uses its best estimates and assumpticns to reasonably value assets and liabilities assumed at the
acquisition date as well as contingent consideration, where applicable, and these estimates are inherently uncartain
and subject to refinement. As a result, during the measurement period, which may be up to one year from the
acquisition date, the Company may record adjustments to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed with a
corresponding offset to goodwill. Upon conciusion of the measurement period or final determination of the values
of assets acquired or liabilities assumed, whichever comes first, any subsequent adjustments are recorded to profit
or loss. For a given acquisition, the Company may identify certain pre-acquisition contingencies as of the acquisition
date and may extend its raview and evaluation of these pre-acquisition contingencies throughout the measurement
period in order to obtain sufficient information to assess these contingencies as part of acquisition accounting, as
applicable.

{ii) Consolidation methods

Entities over which the Company has conirol are consolidated from the date that control commences until the date
that control ceases. Entities over which the Company has significant influence (investments in "associates") are
accounted for under the equity method. Significant influence is assumed when the Company's interests are 20%
or more, unless qualitative factors overcome this assumption,

Associates are those entities in which the Company has significant influence, but not control, over the financial and
operating policies. Investments in associates are recognized initially at cost, inclusive of transaction costs. The
Company's investment includes geodwill identified on acquisition, net of any accumulated impairment losses. The
consolidated financial statements include the Coampany's share of the income and expenses and equity changes of
equity accounted investees, from the date that significant influence commences until the date that significant
influence ceases.

(iii) Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-company balances and transactions, and any unrealized income and expenses arising from intra-company
transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

{b) Foreign currency translation
{i) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of subsidiaries of the
Company at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at the reporting date are re-measured to the functional currency at the exchange rate at that date. Foreign
currency differences arising on re-measurement are recognized through profit or loss, except for differences arising
on the retranslation of available-for-sale equity instruments, which are recognized in other comprehensive income
{loss). Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Foreign currency gains and losses are reported in profit and loss
on a net basis. The effect of currency translation adjustments on cash and cash equivalents is presented separately
in the statements of cash flows and separated from operating, investing and financing activities when deemed
significant.
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(ii) Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on acquisition,
are translated to U.S. doilars at exchange rates at the reporiing date. The income and expenses of foreign
operations are translated to U.S. dollars using average exchange rates for the month during which the transactions
occurred. Foreign currency differences are recognized in other comprehensive income {loss) in the cumulative
translation account; however, if the operation is a non-wholly owned subsidiary, then the relevant proportionate
share of the translation difference is allocated to the non-controlling interest when applicable.

Foreign exchange gains or losses arising from a monetary item receivable from or payable to a foreign operation,
the settlement of which is neither planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future and which its substance is
considered to form part of the net investment in the foreign operation, are recognized in other comprehensive
income (loss) in the cumulative amount of foreign currency translation differences. If, and when, settiement plans
change or deemed likely to occur, then the accounting process in (b)(i) above is applied. When a foreign cperation
payable or receivable classified as a net investment is partially or fully disposed, the proportionate share of the
cumuitative amount in the translation reserve related to that foreign operation is transferred to profit or loss as part
of the profit or loss on disposal. The Company has elected not to treat repayments of monetary items receivable
or payable to a foreign operaticn as a disposition.

(c) Financial Instruments

The Company's financial instruments primarily comprise cash, accounts receivable, Debt with recourse to CSI, Debt
without recourse to CSl, Redeemable Preferred Securities, accounts payable and accrued liabilities, dividends
payable, and holdback assets or liabilities on acquisitions,

Financial assets are recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position if we have a contractual right to
receive cash or other financial assets from another entity. Financial assets, including accounts receivable, are
derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or were transferred io
another party and the Company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Equity securities
held for trading are recorded at fair value.

Financial liabilities include the Debt with recourse to CSI, Debt without recourse to CSI, Redeemable Preferred
Securities, accounts payable and accrued liabilities, dividends payable, and holdbacks on acquisitions. Financial
liabilities are generally recognized initially at fair value, typically being transaction price, plus any directly attributable
transaction costs and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. The Company
derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual cbligations are discharged, cancelled, or expired.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position when,
and only when, the Company has a legal right to offset the amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to
realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Common shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of common shares are
recognized as a deduction from equity, net of tax.

The Company's derivatives are carried at fair value and are reported as assets when they have a positive fair value
and as liabilities when they have a negative fair value.

Changes in the fair values of derivative financial instruments are reported in the consolidated statements of income
(loss), except for cash flow hedges that meet the conditions for hedge accounting. The portion of the gain or loss
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on the hedging instruments that are determined to be an effective hedge are recognized directly in other
comprehensive income {loss), and the ineffective portion in the consolidated statements of income (loss). The gains
or losses defarred in other comprehensive income (loss) in this way are subsequently recognized in the
consolidated statements of income {loss) in the same period in which the hedged underlying transaction or firm
commitment is recognized in the statement of income (loss). In order to qualify for hedge accounting, the Company
is required to document in advance the relationship between the item being hedged and the hedging instrument.
The Company is also required to document and demonstrate an assessment of the relationship between the hedged
item and the hedging instrument, which shows that the hedge will be highly effective on an ongoing basis. This
effectiveness testing is re-performed at the end of sach reporting period to ensure that the hedge remains highly
effective.

(d) intangible assets
(i) Goodwill

Goodwill that arises upon the acquisiticn of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. After initial recognition,
goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses, with the cairying value being reviewed for
impairment at least annually and whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
may be impaired. In respect of equity accounted investees, the carrying amount of goodwill is included in the
carrying amount of the investment.

The impairment test methodology is based on a comparison between the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value-in-use of each of the Company's cash generating units ("CGU") and the net asset carrying values (including
goodwill). Within the Company's reporting structure, business units generally reflect the CGU and are cne level
below the six operating segments (Volaris, Harris, Topicus, Jonas, Perseus, and Vela Operating Groups). [n
determining the recoverable amount, the Company applies an estimated market valuation multipte to the business
unit's most recent annuai recurring revenues, which are generally derived from post-contract customer support
revenues, transactional revenues, and hosted products revenues. Valuation multiples applied by the Company for
this purpose reflect current market conditions specific to the business unit and are assessed for reasonability by
comparison to the Company's current and past acquisition experience involving ranges of revenue-based multiples
required to acquire representative software companies and the Company’s overall revenue based-trading multiple.
In addition, in certain instances, the recoverable amount is determined using a value-in-use approach which follows
the same valuation process that is undertaken for the Company's business acquisitions. An impairment is
recognized if the carrying amount of a CGU exceads its estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
of goodwill is estimated annually on December 31 of each year or whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

(ii) Acquired intangible assets

The Company uses the income approach to value acquired technology and customer relationship intangible assets.
The income approach is a valuation technique that calculates the estimated fair value of an intangible asset based
on the estimated future cash flows that the asset can be expected to generate over its remaining useful life.

The Company utilizes the discounted cash flow ("DCF") methodology which is a form of the income approach that
begins with a forecast of the annual cash flows that a market participant would expect the subject intangible asset
to generate over a discrete projection period. The forecasted cash flows for each of the years in the discrete
projection period are then converted to their present value equivalent using a rate of return appropriate for the risk
of achieving the intangible assets' projected cash flows, again, from a market participant perspective. The present
value of the forecasted cash flows are then added to the present vaiue of the residual value of the intangibie asset
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(if any) at the end of the discrete projection period to arrive at a conclusion with respect to the estimated fair value
of the subject intangible assets.

Specifically, the Company relies on the relief-from-royalty method to value the acquired technology and the multiple-
period excess earnings ("MEEM"} methed to value customer relationship assets.

The underlying premise of the relief-from-royalty method is that the fair value of the technology is equal to the cost
savings (or the "royalty avoided") resulting from the ownership of the asset by the avoidance of paying royalties to
license the use of the technology from ancther owner. Accordingly the income forecast reflects an estimate of a
fair royalty that a licensee would pay, on a percentage of revenue basis, to obtain a license to utilize the technology.

The MEEM method isolates the cash flows attributable to the subject asset by utilizing a forecast of expected cash
flows less the returns atiributable to other enabling assets, both tangible and intangible.

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Company and have finite useful lives are measured at cost, being
reflective of fair value, less accumulated amoartization and impairment losses. Subsequent expenditures are
capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits that form part of the specific asset to which it relates
and other criteria have been met. Otherwise all other expenditures are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

Amortization is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible
assets, other than goodwill, from the date that they are acquired and available for use, since this most closely
reflects the expected usage and patiern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset. To
determine the useful life of the technology assets, the Company considers the length of ime over which it expects
to earn or recover the majority of the present vaiue of the forecasted cash flows of the related intangible assets.
The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

Technalogy assets 210 12 years
Customer assets 5to 20 years
Trademarks 20 years

Backlog Up to 1 year
Non-compete agreements Term of agreement

Amottization methods, ussful lives and the residual values are reviewed at least annually (or when there has been
an indication of impairment) and are adjusted as appropriate.

{iii) Research and development

Expenditure on research activities, undertaken with the prospect of gaining new scientific or technical knowledge
and understanding, is recognized in profit or loss as an expense as incurred.

Expenditure on development activities, whereby research findings are applied to a plan or design for the production
of new or substantially improved products and processes, is capitalized only if the product or process is technically
and commercially feasible, if development costs can be measured reliably, if fufure economic benefits are probable,
if the Company intends to use or sell the asset and the Company intends and has sufficient resources to complete
development. To date, no material development expenditures have been capitalized.
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For the year ended December 31, 2022, $970 (2021 — $737) of research and development costs have been
expensed in profit or loss. These costs are nef of estimated investment tax credits, recognized as part of cther,
net expenses through profit or loss of $40 for the year ended December 31, 2022 (2021 — $33).

(e} Property and equipment
(i) Recognition and measurement

Property and equipment are measured at cosi less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Cost includes initial and subsequent expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the related assat.
When component parts of an item of property and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as
separate items (major components) of property and equipment, where applicable.

{ii) Depreciation

Depreciation is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each part of an
item of property and equipment.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

Asset Rate

Computer hardware 3-5 years

Computer software 1 year

Furniture and equipment 5 years

Leasehold improvements Sharter of the estimated useful life and the term of the lease
Building 50 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end or more frequently
as deemed relevant, and adjusied where appropriate.

(f} Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizavle value. The cost of inventories is based on the first-
in first-out principle, and includes expenditures incurred in acquiring the inventories, production and other costs
incurred in bringing them to their existing location and condition. In the case of manufactured inventories and work
in progress, cost includes an appropriate share of production overheads based on normal operating capacity. Net
realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and selling expenses.

{g) Unbilled revenue

Unbilled revenue represents the gross unbilled amount expected to be collected from customers for contract work
performed to date. It is measured at cost plus profit recognized to date less progress billings and recognized losses,
if any.

Unbilled revenue is presented in the statement of financial position for all contracts in which costs incurred plus
recognized profits exceed progress billings. If progress billings exceed costs incurred plus recognized profits, then
the excess is presented as deferred revenue in the staiement of financial position.
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{h) Other non-current liabilities

Other non-current liabilities consists principally of certain acquired contract liabilities, deferred revenue, provisions
and contingent congideration recognized in connection with business acquisitions to be settled in cash, which are
discounted for measurement purposes.

(i) Impairment
(i) Financial assets (including receivables)

A financial asset not carried at fair value through profit or lcss is assessed at each reporting date to determine
whether there is objective evidence that it is impairad. A financial asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates
that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the assef, and that the loss event had a negative effect
on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired can include default or delinquency by a debtor, restructuring
of an amount due to the Company on terms that the Company would not consider otherwise, or indications that a
debtor or issuer will enter bankruptey.

The Company considers evidence of impairment for receivables at both a specific and collective level. All
individually significant receivables are assessed for specific impairment. All individually significant receivablas found
not to be specifically impaired, together with receivables that are not individually significant are collectively assessed
for impairment by grouping {ogether receivaples with similar risk characteristics.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortized cost is calculated as the difference
between its camying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset's
original effective interest rate. Losses are recognized in profit or loss and reflected in an allowance account against
receivables. When a subsequent event causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in
impairment loss is reversed through profit or oss.

(i} Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories {(which is addressed in note
3(f)) and deferred tax assets (which is addressed in note 3{(m)), are reviewed at each reporting date (or more
frequently if required) to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then
the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. For goodwill, the recoverable amount is estimated annually on
December 31 of each fiscal year or whenever required.

The recoverable amount of an assset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In
assessing the value in use, the Company uses discounted cash flows which are determined using a pre-tax discount
rate specific to the asset or CGU. The discount rate used reflects current market conditions including risks specific
to the assets. Estimates within the cash flows include recurring revenue growth rates and operating expenses. For
the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of
other assets or groups of assets, which for the Company’s purposes is typically representative of the business unit
level within the corporate and management structure, For the purposes of goodwill impairment testing, goodwil!
acquired in a business combination is allocated to the CGU, or the group of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination.
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An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated recoverabie
amount. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognized in respect of CGUs are
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying
amounts of the other assets (such as intangible assets and property and equipment) in the CGU {(group of units) on
a pro rata basis.

Goodwill that forms part of the carrying amount of an investrment in an associate is not recognized separately and,
therefore, is not tested for impairment separately. Instead, the entire amount of the investment in an associate is
tested for impairment as a single asset when there is objective evidence that the investment in an associate may
be impaired.

An impairment (oss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. In respect of other non-financial assets, impairment
losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has
decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization,
if no impairment oss had been previously recognized.

{j) Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation
that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation. Provisions are measured at the estimated future cash flows required to settle the present obligation,
hased on the most reliable evidence available at the reporting date. The estimated cash flows are discounted at a
pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.
The amortization of the discount is recognized as part of finance costs.

(k} Revenue recognition

Revenue represents the amecunt the Company expects to receive for products and services in its contracts with
customers, net of discounts and sales taxes. The Company reports revenue under four revenue categories being,
License, Hardware and other, Professional services, and Maintenance and other recurring revenue. Software
license revenue is comprised of non-recurring license fees charged for the use of software products licensed under
multiple-year or perpetual arrangements. Professional service revenue consists of fees charged for implementation
setvices, custom programming, product training, certain managed services, and consulting. Hardware and other
revenue includes the resale of third party hardware as part of customized solutions, as well as sales of hardware
assembled internally and the reimbursement of travel costs. Maintenance and other recurring revenue primarily
consists of fees charged for customer support on software products post-delivery and also includes recurring fees
derived from combined software/support contracts, transaction revenues, managed services associated with C8l
software that has been sold to the customer, and hosted software-as-a-service products.

Contracts with mulfiple products or services

Typically, the Company enters inte contracts that contain multiple products and services such as software licenses,
hosted software-as-a-service, maintenance, professional services, and hardware. The Company evaluates these
arrangements to determine the appropriate unit of accounting (performance obligation) for revenue recognition
purposes based on whether the product or service is distinct from some or all of the other products or gervices in
the arrangement. A product or service is distinct if the customer can benefit from it on its own or together with
other readily available resources and Constellation’s promise to transfer the good or service is separately
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identifiable from other promises in the contractual arrangement with the customer. Non-distinct prodiicts and
services are combined with other goods or services until they are distinct as a bundle and therefore form a single
performance obligation.

Where a contract consists of more than one performance obligation, revenue is allocated to each based on their
estimated standalone selling price.

Nature of products and services

The Company sells on-premise software licenses on both a perpetual and specified-term basis. Revenue from the
license of distinct software is recognized at the time that both the right-to-use the software has commenced and the
software has been made available to the customer. Certain of the Company’s contracts with customers contain
provisions that require the customer fo renew optional support and maintenance in order to maintain the active right
to use a perpetual or term license. The renewal payments after the initial bundled support and maintenance term
in these cases apply to both the continued right-to-use the license and the support and maintenance renewal.
Where the fees payable for the initial term are incremental to the fees for the renewal terms, the excess is treated
as a prepayment for expected renewals and allocated (amortized) evenly over the expected customer renewals, up
to the estimated life of the software thai is typicaily 4-6 years.

Revenue from the license of software that involves complex implementation or customization that is not distinct,
and/or includes sales of hardware that is not distinct, is recognized as a combined performance obligation using the
percentage-of-completion method based primarily on labour hours. The percentage-of-completion method based
on labour hours requires the Company to make significant judgments to determine the estimated hours to
completion which affects the timing of revenue recognized,

A portion of the Company's sales, categorized as hardware and other revenue, are accounted for as product
revenue. Product revenue is recognized when control of the product has transferred under the terms of an
enforceable contract.

Revente related to the customer reimbursement of travel related expenses incurred during a project implementation
where the Company is the principal in the arrangement is included in the hardware and other revenue category.
Revenue is recognized as costs are incurred which is consistent with the period in which the costs are invoiced.
Reimbursable travel expenses incurred for which an invoice has not been issued, are recorded as part of unbilled
revenue on the statement of financial position.

Maintenance and other recurring revenue primarily consists of fees charged for customer support on software
products post-delivery and also includes, to a lesser exient, recurring fees derived from software licenses that are
not distinct from maintenance, transaction revenues, managed services associated with CSl software, and hosted
products.

Revenue from software-as-a-service (SaaS) arrangements, which allows customers to use hosted software over a
term without taking possession of the software, are provided on a subscription basis. Revenue from the SaaS
subscription, which includes the hosted software and maintenance is recognized rateably over the term of the
subscription. Significant incremental payments for SaaS in an initial term are recognized rateably over the expecied
renewal periods, up to the estimated life of the software.

Professional services revenue including installation, implementation, training and customization of software is
recognized by the stage of completion of the performance obligation determined using the percentage of completion
method noted above or as such services are performed as appropriate in the circumstances. Professional services
revenue also includes managed services not associated with CSI software. The revenue and profit of fixed price
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contracts is recognized on a percentage of completion basis when the outcome of a contract can be estimated
reliably. When the outcome of the contract cannot be estimated reliably but the Company expects to recover its
costs, the amount of expected costs is treated as variable consideration and the transaction price is updated as
more information becomes known.

The timing of revenue recognition often differs from contract payment schedules, resulting in revenue that has been
garned but not billed. These amounts are included in unbilled revenue. Amounts billed in accordance with customer
contracts, but not yet earned, are recorded and presented as part of deferred revenue.

Costs to Obtain a Contract

The Company allocates incremental costs to obtain a contract (which principally consists of commissions) to the
various performance obligations to which they relate using the expected-based allocation (relative expected
margins) for bundled costs. For those performance obligations that are expected to be renewed at the end of the
initial period without a further commission {such as post-contract customer support), the Company has considered
expected renewals over the life of the intellectual property when determining the expected margins from the
arrangement. For performance obligations not delivered upfront, the allocated commissions are deferred and
amortized over the pattern of transfer of the related performance obligation. For commissions allocated to term-
based license arrangements and post-contract customer support, the amortization period is expected to be
approximately 4-6 years. Capitalized costs to obtain a contract are included in other non-current assets on the
consclidated balance sheet.

{l) Finance income and finance costs

Finance income comprises interest income, gains on the disposal of available-for-sale financial assets, and changes
in the fair value of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss. Interest income is recognized as it
accrues through profit or loss, using the effective interest method.

Finance costs comprise interest expense on korrowings, interest expense asscciated with lease obligations,
amortization of the discount on provisions, and impairment losses recognized on financial assets other than trade
receivables. Transaction costs attribuiable to the Company's bank indebtedness are recognized in finance costs
using the effective interest method.

{m) Income taxes

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are recognized in profit or
loss except fo the extent that it relates to a business combination, or items recognized directly in equity or in other
comprehensive income (loss).

Current tax is the expected taxes payable or recsivable on the taxable income or loss for the period, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to taxes payable in respact of previous
years.

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognized for
temporary differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that it is probable that they will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. In addition, deferred tax is not recognized for taxable temporary differences arising on the
initial recognition of goodwill.
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Deferred tax is measured at tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse,
based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to
income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but we intend
to setile current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized
simultaneously.

A deferred tax asset is recognized for unused tax losses, tax credits, difference in tax bases in the purchaser's tax
jurisdiction and its cost as reported in the consolidated financial statements as a result of an intra-group transfer of
assets and deductible temporary differences, to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

{n) Investment tax credits

The Company is entitled to both non-refundable and refundable investment tax credits for qualifying research and
development activities. Investment tax credits are included within “Other, net” for items of a period expense hature
or as a reduction of property and equipment for items of a capital nature when the amount is reliably estimable and
the Company has reasonable assurance regarding compliance with the relevant objective conditions and that the
credit will be realized.

{0) Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn
revenues and incur expenses, inciuding revenues and expenses that relate fo transactions with any of ihe
Company's other components. The operating results of all operating segments are reviewed regularly by the
Company's President to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assessing their
performance.

The Company consists of six operating segments being, Volaris, Harris, Topicus, Vela, Jonas and Perseus. Each
of the Company's operating segments operate essentially as mini Constellations, conglomerates of small vertical
market software companies with similar economic characteristics. Each operating segment CEO is focused on
investing capital that generates returns at or above the investment hurdie rates set by CSI's head office (primarily
the President) and the Board of Directors, irrespective of whether the acquired business operates primarily in the
public or private sector. The Company aggregates the six operating segments into one reportable segment,
consistent with the objective and basic principles of IFRS 8.

{p) Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share data for its ordinary shares, being common shares.
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period, adjusted for treasury
shares held. Diluted earnings per share is determined by dividing the profit or loss attributable to shareholders of
ordinary shares by the weighted average number of shares outstanding, adjusted for the effects of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares.
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{q) Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee henefit obligations, including wages, benefits, incentive compensation, and compensated
absences are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability
is recognized for the amount expected to be paid and settled under the Company's employee incentive
compensation plan if the Company has legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount at the time benuses are
paid as a result of past service provided by the empioyee, and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

(r} Leases

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease based on whether the
contract conveys the right to controi the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
' The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-
use asset is initially measured based on the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments
made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs (o
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less
any lease incentives received. The assets are depreciated to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-
use asset or the lease term using the straight-line method as this most closely reflects the expected patiern of
consumption of the future economic benefits. The lease term includes periods covered by an option to extend if the
Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option. [n addition, the right-of-use asset can be periodically reduced
by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability. The lease liability is
initially measured at the present value of the lease paymenis that are not paid at the commencement date,
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company’s
incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when there
is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the Company’s
estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the Company changes its
assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option. When the lease liability is
remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero. The Company
has elected to apply the practical expedient not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low value assets. The lease payments associated
with these leases is recognized as an expense cn a straight-line basis over the lease term.

4. Business acquisitions

(a) On May 2, 2022, the Company completed an agreement with Allscripts Healthcare Solutions ("Allscripts) to
acquire 100% of the net assets (including the shares of certain subsidiaries) of Allscripts’ Hospitals and Large
Physician Practices business segment (“Altera”). The Company paid cash of $731 less a cash holdback receivable
of $4 for aggregate consideration of $727. Contingent consideration of up to $30 could be payabie based on
performance of the business during the two years following transaction closing.

Altera is a software provider based in the United States and primarily operates in the healthcare market and is a
software business similar to existing businesses operated by the Company. The acquisition has been accounted
for using the acquisition method with the results of operaticns included in these consolidated financial statements
from the date of the acquisition.
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The goodwill recognized in connection with this acquisition is primarily attributable to the application of the
Company's best practices to improve the operations of Altera, synergies with existing businesses of the Company,
and other intangible assets that do not qualify for separate recognition including assembled workforce. The goodwill
is not expected to be deductible for income tax purposes.

The gross contractual amount of acquired receivables was $170; however, the Company has recorded an allowance
of $65 as part of the acquisition accounting to reflect contractual cash flows that are not expected to be collected.

Due to the complexity of the acquisition, the Company is in the process of determining and finalizing the estimated
fair value of the net assets acquired as part of the Altera acquisition. The amounts determined on a provisional
basis generally relate to net asset assessments and measurement of the assumed liabilities. The provisional
purchase price allocations may differ from the final purchase price allocations, and these differences may be
material. Revisions to the allocations will occur as additional information about the fair value of assets and liabilities
becomes available.

The impact of acquisition accounting applied on a provisional basis in connection with the acquisition of Altera is as
follows:

Assets acquired:

Cash $ 61
Accounts receivable 103
Other current assets 103
Property and equipment 23
Right of' use assets 27
Other non-cuirent assets 30
Deferred income taxes 25
Technology assets 224
Customer assets 395

994

Liabilities assumed:

Current liahilities 102
Deferred revenue 162
Deferred income taxes 12
Long-term lease obligations 26
Other non-current liabilitics 47

335
Goodwill 38
Total consideration $ 727
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The acquisition of Altera contributed revenue of $556 for the year ended December 31, 2022 and net income of $0
for the year ended December 31, 2022, If this acquisition had occurred on January 1, 2022, the Company estimates
that pro-forma consolidated revenue and pro-forma consolidated net income (loss) would have been $6,912 and
$552 compared to the actual amounts reported in the consclidated statement of income (loss) for the actual period
for the year ended December 31, 2022

(b) During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company completed a number of additional acquisitions for
aggregate cash consideration of $902 plus cash holdbacks of $194 and contingent consideration with an estimated
acquisition date fair value of $53. The total consideration resulting from the additional acquisitions in the year ended
December 31, 2022 was $1,148. The contingent consideration is payable on the achievement of certain financial
targets in the post-acquisition periods. The obligation for contingent consideration for acquisitions during the year
ended Dacember 31, 2022 has been recorded at its estimated fair value at the various acquisition dates. The
estimated fair value of the applicable contingent consideration is calculated using the estimated financial outcome
and resulting expected contingent consideration to be paid and inclusion of a discount rate as appropriate. For
these arrangements, which include both maximum, or capped, and unlimited contingent consideration amounts, the
estimated increase to the initial consideration is not expected to exceed $156. As of December 31, 2022, aggregate
contingent consideration of $157 (December 31, 2021 - $104) has been reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position at its estimated fair value relating to applicable acquisitions completed in the current and prior
periods. Changes made to the estimated fair value of contingent consideration are included in other, net in the
consolidated statements of income (loss). An expense of $42 has been recorded for the year ended December 31,
2022, as a result of such changes (expense of $14 for the year ended December 31, 2021).

Other than Altera, no other acquisitions were desmed to be individually significant. The majority of the businesses
acquired during the period were acquisitions of shares and the remainder were asset acquisitions. The cash
holdbacks are generally payable over a two-year period and are adjusted, as necessary, for such items as working
capital or net tangible asset assessments, as defined in the agreements, and claims under the respective
representations and warranties of the purchase and sale agreements.

On January 3, 2022, the Company acquired a controlling interest of 63.51% in Adapt IT Holdings Limited ("Adapt
IT"), a Company based in South Africa. The remaining 36.49% represents non-controlling interest. The total current
assets of Adapt IT on the acquisition date and recorded on the opening balance sheet were $30, the total long-lived
assets were $114, the total current liabilities were $23 and the total long-term liabilities were $59. Tota! revenue
recorded during the year ended December 31, 2022 was $103 and net income for year ended December 31, 2022
was $3.

On May 16, 2022, Topicus acquired a controlling interest of 72.68% in Sygnity S.A. ("Sygnity"), a Company hased
in Poland. The remaining 27.32% represents non-controlling interest. The total current assets of Sygnity on the
acquisition date and recorded on the opening balance sheet were $19, the total long-lived assets were $78, the
total current liabilities were $18 and the total long-term labilities were $18. The total revenue recorded during the
year ended December 31, 2022 was $32 and the net loss for the year ended December 31, 2022 was $0.

The additional acguisitions during the year ended December 31, 2022 include software companies catering to the
following markets: accounting, automotive, communications, financial services, education, data management,
fitness, fleet and facility management, healthcare, homebuilders, horticulture, legal, logistics, mining, oil and gas,
moving and storage, notaries, pulp and paper manufacturers, real estate brokers and agents, retail management
and distribution, speech recognition, third party logistics warehouse management systems, transit, agribusiness,
airport, auctions, compliance, consfruction, data management, human capital, information services, public libraries,
local government, manufacturing, not for profit organizations, public housing, public safety, publishing, software
development, property management, hospitality, document management, performance management, trucking,
schools, small and medium sized businesses, engineering, travel, automated explosive tracking, risk management,
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textiles and apparel, asset management, public safety, project management, arts and culture, club, convenience
store distribution, ESG, public sector, security, veterinary, and utflities all of which are software businesses similar
to existing businesses operated by the Company. The acquisitions have been accounted for using the acquisition
method with the results of operations inciuded in these consolidated financial statements from the date of each
acquisition.

The goodwill recognized in connection with these additional acquisitions is primarily attributable to the application
of Constellation’s best practices to improve the operations of the companies acquired, synergies with existing
businesses of Constellation, and other intangible assets that do not qualify for separate recognition including
assembled workforce. Goodwill in the amount of $22 is expected to be deductible for income tax purposes.

The gross contractual amounts of acquired receivables from the additional acquisitions was $134; however, the
Company has recorded an allowance of $10 as part of the acquisition accounting to reflect contractual cash flows
that are not expected to be collected.

Due to the complexity and timing of certain acquisitions made, the Company is in the process of determining and
finalizing the estimated fair value of the net assets acquired as part of the acquisitions closed during 2022. The
amounts determined on a provisional basis generally relate to net asset assessments and measurement of the
assumed liabilities, including acquired contract liabilities. The provisiona! purchase price allocations may differ from
the final purchase price allocations, and these differences may be material. Revisions to the allocations will occur
as additional information abouf the fair value of assets and liabilities becomes available. The cash consideration
associated with these provisional estimates totals $902.

The aggregate impact of acquisition accounting applied in connection with the aggregate of business acquisitions
that are not individually significant in the year ended December 31, 2022 is as follows:
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Assets acquired:

Cash $ 155
Accounts receivable 124
Other current assets 77
Property and equipment 26
Right of use agsets 62
Other non-current assets 7
Deferred income taxes 30
Trademarks 0
Technology assets 599
Customer assets 625

1,705

Liabilitics assumed:

Current liabilities 176
Deferred revenue 155
Deferred income taxes 221
Long-term debt 23
Long-term lease obligations 47
Other non-current labilities 26
647
Non-controlling interest 41
Goodwill 147
Bargain purchase gain (16)
Total consideration $ 1,148

The 2022 additional business acquisitions did not have a material impact to either the consolidated revenue or the
consoclidated net income (loss) for the year ended December 31, 2022. The materiality threshold is reviewed on a
regular basis taking into account the quantitative (contribution to revenue and net income (loss)) and qualitative
{size and comparability with other Constellation businesses) factors of current period acquisitions on both an
individual and aggregate basis.
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5. Inventories

December 31, Decenber 31,

2022 2021
Raw materials $ 13 8§ 14
Work in progress 5 2
Finished goods 30 19
Total $ 48 3 35

No inventories were carried at fair value less cost to sell, and the carrying amount of inventories subject to retention
of title clauses was $nil as at December 31, 2022 and 2021,

Raw materials (which consists primarily of hardware components) and changes in finished goods and work in
progress recognized as hardware expenses in the consolidated statements of income (loss) amounted to $122
(2021: $90). The write-downs of inventories to net realizable value amounted to $5 (2021 $2), The reversals of
write-downs amounted to $2 (2021; $3). Write-downs and reversals of write-downs are based on the Company’s
projected sales. The write-downs and reversals are included in hardware expenses.

6. Other assets and liabilities

(a) Other assets

December 31,2022  Decemmber 31,2021

Prepaid expenses and other current assets $ 22 % 155
Investment tax credits recoverable 39 27
Sales taxreceivable 26 25
Fquity securities held for trading 115 39
Other receivables 93 30
Total other cutrent assets 49 3 296
Investment tax credits recoverable 3 13 3 11
Costs to obtain a contract 55 46
Non-current frade and other receivables and other assets 96 39
Fquity accounted investees 3 2
Total oiher non-current assets $ 172 % 95

{b) Other liabilities

December 31,2022 December 31, 2021

Contingent consideration $ 109 § 72
Deferred revenue 100 52
Other non-cutrent liabilitics 53 51
Total other non-current liabilities $ 262 % 175
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7. Property and equipment

Computer Fumiture and Leasehold Building and

Computer hardware software equipment improvernents land Total
Cost
Balance at January 1, 2021 $ 96 36 46 3 43 % 8 3 29
Additions 20 3 4 2 0 29
Acquisitions through business combinations Lt 2 7 5 3 27
Disposals / retirements 5 1y (3) 3] (3} (18
Effect of movements in foreign exchange and other (3) 1 4 2 (9] {4)
Balance at December 31, 2021 $ 119 40 49 f 47 3 7 3% 263
Balance at January 1, 2022 b 119 40 49 % 47 % 7% 263
Additions 28 3 3 4 0 41
Acquisitions through business combinations 29 5 8 9 - sl
Disposals / retirements ©) 2) (O] {n (0) un
Effect of movements in foreign exchange and other ()] 1) 2) (3) (0} (14)
Balance at December 31, 2022 5 162 43 55 0§ 56 % 7% 325
Depreciation and impairnent losses
Balance at January 1, 2021 13 63 3 278 0 5 1 3 143
Depreciation charge for the year 21 3 7 7 ] 38
Disposals / retirements 4 (1} (2) ) ) oHn
Elfect of movements in foreign exchange and other {2) 1 (0} {1} 1 (%)
Balance at December 31, 2021 $ 77 36 31 % 24§ 18 170
Balance at January 1, 2022 5 77 36 1% XM 5 1 % 170
Depreciation charge for the year 27 6 8 8 1 50
Disposals / retirements (8) 2 Y} (1) n {16)
Effect of movements in forsign exchange and other ) ) (1) (1)) 0 (8)
Balance at December 31, 2022 £ 93 18 34§ 25 % 23 197
Carrying amounts:
At January |, 2021 $ 33 19 3% 7 % 35
AtDecember 31, 2021 3 42 18 23 % 6 $ 93
At Januvary 1,2022 5 42 4 18 3 233 6 % 93
At December 31,2022 b3 69 [ 21 % 2773 58 128
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8. Right of use assets

The following table presents the right-of-use assets for the Company:

Computer Furniture and
hardware Vehicles equipment Building Other Total

Cost
Balance at January 1, 2021 3 19 § 27 % 4 3% 315 % $ 369
Additions 9 8 1 34 0 52
Acquisitions through business combinations | 3 0 49 54
Disposals / retirementis 3 5 i (3D (0} 40)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange and other (1) (2 (™ (12) (1)) {16)
Balance at December 31, 2021 $ 25 % 3% 5% 355 % 4 8 419
Balance at January 1, 2022 3 25 % 31 % 5 % 355 % 4 % 419
Additions 6 6 0 56 0 69
Acquisitions through business combinations 0 2 0 86 | 90
Disposals / retirements * (5) ™ (32) (h (4
Effect of movements in foreign exchange and other ) @ 0y (19 () (22)
Balance at December 31, 2022 $ 26 § 33 0% 5% 445 § 4§ 512
Depreciation and impairment losses
Balance at January 1, 2021 $ 9 % 11 % 2 % o $ 1 % 17
Depreciation charge for the year 6 9 | 66 1 23
Disposals / retirements 3) (3 ()] (14 ((5)} (20)
Effect ofmovements in foreign exchange and other ()] (1} (0} 4 {0 (6)
Balance at December 31, 2021 12 15 2 143 2 174
Balance at January 1, 2022 12 15 2 143 2 174
Depreciation charge for the year 5 8 1 78 1 93
Disposals / retirements @ (4} (0 (20} ) 29
Effect of movements in foreign exchange and other 0y D 0 €] (0) (8)
Balance at December 31, 2022 13 18 3 193 2 229
Carrying amounts:
At January 1, 2021 ¥ 10 $ 16 & 3 3 21 % 2% 251
At December 51, 2021 3 3 % 16 % 2 % 212 % 23 243
At January 1, 2002 5 13 3 16 % 2 % 212§ 2% 245
At December 31, 2022 $ 13 § 15 8 25 252 % 293 283
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9. Intangible assets and goodwill

Technology Customer Non-compete
Assefs Assets Backlog  agreements Trademarks  Goodwill Total

Cost
Balance at January 1, 2021 3 2,568 $ 1,640 $ 17 % 3% g 3% 435 3 4,671
Acquisitions through business combinations 728 780 - - 25 199 1,732
Fffect of moverents in foreign exchange (70) 64 0 {®) 2) (21) (158)
Balance at December 31, 2021 $ 3226 § 2356 $ 17 % 3 3 0 % 614 § 6,245
Balance at January 1, 2022 $ 3226 % 235 % 17 $ 38 30 % 614 3§ 6,245
Acquisitions through business combinations 816 1,019 0 - 0 231 2,066
Effect of movements in foreign exchange and other (105) (81) 1 (0) 2) (28) (218)
Balance at December 31,2022 3 3937 3% 3294 % 17 % 2 8 29 3% gl6 $ 8,095
Accumnlated amortization and impairment losses
Ralance at January |, 2021 $ 1,662 § 659 % 17 % 3% 313 4 % 2,346
Amorttization for the period 33 203 0 0 L - 518
Timpainnent charge 3 G - - - 0 10
Fffect oF movements in foreign exchange (38) (19) 0 (0} 0 - (57)
Balance at December 31, 2021 $ 1,940 § 849 3 17 % 2 % 4 % 4 % 2,817
Balance at January |, 2022 $ 1941 % 349 § 17 $ 29 4 % 4 % 2,817
Amortization for the period 394 280 0 0 2 - 576
[mpairment charge 1 0 - - - 5 7
Effect of moverments in foreign exchange (56) 27 0 )] - - (83
Balance at December 31, 2022 ¥ 2280 % 1,103 % 17 % 2 % 6 ¥ 9 % 3416
Carrying amounts
At January 1,202] b 907 % 981 3 o $ 0% 5% 432§ 2,325
Al December 31,2021 $ 1,285 § 1,507 $ 08 o 8% 2 % 610§ 3428
At January 1, 2022 $ 1,285 § 1,507 % 0 % 0% 2§ 610 % 3,428
At December 31, 2022 $ 1657 % 2,191 % 0 $ o $ 2305 808 % 4,679

Impairment teslting for cash-generating units confaining goodwill

The annual impairment test of goodwill was performed as of December 31, 2022 and 2021. During the year ended
December 31, 2022, goodwill in the amount of $5 was impaired and expensed in the consolidated statement of
income (loss) (2021 - $0). For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to the Company's business
units included in each operating segment, which represent the lowest level within the Company at which goodwill
is monitored for internal purposes. There was no goodwill reallocated to the Company’s CGUs that was deemed
to be significant in comparison to the carrying amount of goodwill as at December 31, 2022.
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In determining the recoverable amount, the Company applied an estimated market valuation multiple to the
business unit's maost recent annual recurring revenues, which are derived from combined software/support
contracts, transaction revenues, and hosted products. Valuation muliples, which are Level 3 inputs, applied by the
Company for this purpose reflect current market conditions specific to the business unit and are assessed for
reasonability by comparison to the Company's current and past acquisition experience involving ranges of revenue-
based multiples required to acquire representative software companies. During 2022, the estimated market
valuation multiple ranged from 1.5X to 6.5X of recurring revenue. The Company has nine CGUs whereby the total
goodwill allocated is significant in comparison to the Company’s total carrying amount of goodwill. The total gocdwill
allocated to each of these CGUs as at December 31, 2022 is $88, $25, $22, $26, $24, $21, $25, $21 and $23.

10. Debt with recourse to CSl

Liability of CSTunder

CS1 Facility the IRGA Debeniures Term Loan Tatal
Principal outstanding at December 31, 2022 (and, except
tor debentures, equal to fair value) § 322 % 463 % 08 % 79 3 1,074
Deduct: Carrying value of transaction costs included in
debt balance 4] - - ()] (2
Carrying value at December 31, 2022 321 465 208 7 - 1072
Current portion 321 184 - - 5035
Non-current portion - 281 208 78 367

CS! Facifity

On November 5, 2021, Consteilation completed an amendment and restatement of its revolving credit facility
agreement (the “CS! Facility”), with a syndicate of Canadian chartered banks and U.S. banks in the amount of $700,
extending its maturity date to November 2026. In March 2023, the total amount on the revolver was increased from
$700 to $840. The CSI Facility bears a variable interest rate with no fixed repayments required over the term to
maturity. Interest rates are calculated at standard U.S. and Canadian reference rates plus interest rate spreads
based on a leverage table. The CSI Facility is collateralized by the majority of the Company’s assets including the
assets of certain material subsidiaries. The CSI Facility contains standard events of default which if not remedied
within a cure period would trigger the repayment of any outstanding balance. As at December 31, 2022, $322
(December 31, 2021 — $nil) had been drawn from this credit facility, and letters of credit totaling $12 (December 31,
2021 - $79) were issued, which limits the borrowing capacity on a dollar-for-dollar basis. Transaction costs
associated with the CSI Facility are being amortized through profit or loss using the effective interest rate method.
As at December 31, 2022, the carrying amount of such costs is $1 (December 31, 2021 - $2).

Liability of CSt under the terms of the IRGA/TSS Members Agreement

On December 23, 2014, in accordance with the terms of the purchase and sale agreement for the initial acquisition
of TSS by CSI, and on the basis of the term sheets attached thereto, Constellation and the Joday Group, among
others, entered into a Members Agreement (the “TSS Membhers Agreement”} pursuant to which the Joday Group
acquired 33.29% of the voting intetests in Constellation Scftware Netherlands Holding Codperatief U.A. {which was
renamed to Topicus.com Codperatief U.A., (‘Topicus Coop)), a subsidiary of Constellation and the indirect owner
of 100% of TSS at the time of the acquisition. Total proceeds from this transaction was EUR 39.
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On January 5, 2021, the TSS Members Agreement was terminated in conjunction with the acquisition of
Topicus.com B.V., the reorganization of Topicus Coop and the execution of the Investors Rights and Governance
Agreement (“IRGA"). The IRGA was established to create certain confractual obligations of the parties in respect
of the govemance of Topicus and Topicus Cocp. The Joday Group's inferest in Topicus Coop comprises
39,331,284 Topicus Coop Ordinary Units resulting in an interest of 30.29% in Topicus Coop. The IRGA provides
for transfer restrictions in respect of the Topicus Coop Units.

Any time after January 5, 2021, any member of the Joday Group has the right, at their option, to sell any number of
its Topicus Coop Units to CSI at a cash price per Tapicus Coop Unit determined in accordance with the IRGA. Upon
the exercise of such option by a member of the Joday Group, CSI will be obligated to purchase 33.33% of such
Topicus Coap Units within 30 days, and an additional 33.33% on each of the first and the second anniversary of
such initial purchase. Notwithstanding the foregoing, CSl can offer Topicus the right to purchase such Topicus Coop
Units in lieu of CSI.

in the event of a change of control of C8I, any member of the Joday Group has the right, at their option, to sell all
of its Topicus Coop Units to CSI at a cash price per Topicus Coop Unit determined in accordance with the IRGA.
Upon the exercise of such option by a member of the Joday Group, CSI will be obligated to purchase all such
Topicus Coop Units. Notwithstanding the foregoing, C8SI can offer Topicus the right to purchase such Topicus Coop
Units in lieu of CSI.

If CSI reduces its economic interest in Topicus by a sale or transfer of its economic interest (and not due to any
additional issuance of any shares cr equity by Topicus) by more than one-third {calculated on a fully converted
basis in accordance with the IRGA), any member of the Joday Group has the right, at their option, to sell to CSI
one-third of its Topicus Coop Units at a cash price per Topicus Coop Unit determined in accordance with the IRGA.
Upon the exercise of such put option by a member of the Joday Group, CS! will be obligated to purchase all such
put Topicus Coop Units. Notwithstanding the foregoing, CS1 can offer Topicus the right to purchase such Topicus
Coop Units in lieu of CSI. Any member of the Joday Group has a similar right to sell one-half or all of its remaining
Topicus Coop Units, respectively, at its aption, if CSI further reduces its remaining fully-diluted economic interest in
Topicus by a sale or transfer of its economic intersst by one-half and again if CSi sells its entire remaining economic
interest in Topicus.

All of the Topicus Coop Ordinary Units held by the Joday Group and ljssel B.V. (collectively, the “Topicus Coop
Exchangeable Units")y are exchangeable, directly or indirectly, for Topicus Subordinate Voting Shares. Al of the
above rights of members of the Joday Group apply to any Topicus Subordinate Voting Shares issued on an
exchange of Topicus Coop Exchangeable Units.

At any time after December 31, 2023, CSI has the right, at its option, to buy all of the Topicus Coop Units and
shares of Topicus held by certain members of the Joday Group (excluding Joday) at a cash price per Topicus Ceoop
Unit (or share of Topicus, as applicable) determined in accordance with the IRGA. After December 31, 2043, CSl
has the same right to buy all of the Topicus Coop Units and shares of Topicus held by the remaining members of
the Joday Group, including Jeday.

In addition, if certain individuals affiliated with Joday are terminated from their employment with Topicus Coop or
an affiliate thereof for urgent cause (as defined in the Dutch Civil Code), CSI has the right, at its option, to buy all
of Topicus Coop Units held by such individuals at a cash price per Tapicus Coop Unit determined in accordance
with the IRGA.

The Company has continued to classify the above obligations of CS1 under the terms of the IRGA as a liability. The
main valuation driver in such calculation is the maintenance and other recurring revenue of Topicus. Maintenance
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and recurring revenue of Topicus for the trailing twelve months on a pro-forma basis determined at the end of the
current reporting period was used as the basis for valuing the interests at each redemption date. Any increase or
decrease in the value of such fiability is recorded as an expense or income in the consolidated statements of income
{loss) for the period.

During the periods ended December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, no options were exercised. During the year
December 31, 2022, a distribution in the amount of $23 (December 31, 2021 - $22) was paid to the Joday Group.

Debentures

On October 1, 2014 and November 19, 2014, the Company issued debentures with a total principal value of C$96
for total proceeds of C$91. On September 30, 2015, the Company issued another tranche of debentures
(collectively with the 2014 issuances called the “Debentures”) with a total principal value of C$1886 for total proceeds
of C$214.

The Debentures have a maturity date of March 31, 2040 {the “Maturity Date”).
The interast rate from and including:

¢ March 31, 2020 but excluding March 31, 2021 was 8.4%
« March 31, 2021 but excluding March 31, 2022 was 7.2%
¢ March 31, 2022 but excluding March 31, 2023 is 9.9%

o March 31, 2023 but excluding March 31, 2024 is 13.3%

Subsequent from and including March 31, 2024 to but excluding the Maturity Date, the interest rate applicable to
the Debentures will be reset on an annual basis on March 31 of each year, at a rate equal to the annual average
percentage change in the All-items Consumer Price Index during the 12-month period ending on December 31 in
the prior year (which amount may be positive or negative) plus 6.5%. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the interest
rate applicable to the debentures will not be less than 0%. The Company may, subject to certain approvals, elect
the Payment in Kind election (“PIK Election”), in lieu of paying interest in cash, to satisfy all or any portion of its
interest obligation payable on an interest payment date by issuing to each Debenture holder PIK Debentures equal
to the amount of the interest obligation to be satisfied. The PIK Debentures will have the same terms and conditions
as the Debentures and will form part of the principal amount of the Debentures. [If, on any interest payment date,
the Company fails to pay the amount of interest owing on the Debentures in full in cash, the Company will not (A}
declare or pay dividends of any kind on the Common Shares, nor (B} participate in any share buyback or redemption
involving the Common Shares, until the date on which the Company pays such interest (or the unpaid portion
thereof) in cash to holders of the Debentures; however, where the Company has issued PIK Debentures in respect
of all or a portion of the amount of interest owing on the Debentures on an interest payment date, the Company
may resume declaring or paying dividends of any kind on the Common Shares and participating in any share
buyback or redemption involving the Commeon Shares beginning on the next earlier of (i) the interest payment date
of which the Company pays the amount of interest owing on the Debentures in full in cash and (ii) the date on which
the Company repays all amounts owing under the PIK Debenture. All payments in respect of the Debentures will
be subordinated in right of payment to the prior payment in full of all senior indebtedness of the Company.

The Debentures will be redeemable in certain circumstancas at the option of the Company or the holder. During
the period beginning on March 16 and ending on March 31 of each year, the Company will have the right, at its
option, to give notice to holders of Debentures of its intention to redeem the Debentures, in whole or in part, on
March 31 in the year that is five years following the year in which notice is given, at a price equal to the principal
amount thereof plus accrued and unpaid interest up to but excluding the date fixed for redemption. During the
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period beginning on March 1 and ending on March 15 of each year, holders of Debentures will also have the right,
at their option, to give notice to the Company of their intention to require the Company to repurchase (or to "put”)
the Debentures, in whole or in part, on March 31 in the year that is five years following the year in which notice is
given, at a price equal to the principal amount thereof plus accrued and unpaid interest up to but excluding the date
fixed for repurchase.

During the periods ended December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, no notices for redemption of the Debentures
were received or given by the Company.

The fair value of the debentures as at December 31, 2022 was $287 (December 31, 2021 - $308).
Term Loan

One of CS!'s subsidiaries has entered into a GBP 65 term debt facility with a financial institution for which CSl has
guaranteed the debt. The facility bears a fixed rate of interest. The term loan contains events of default that, if not
remedied, allow the loan note holder to require repayment of the loan principal and interest. The loan is due in
2028,

11. Debt without recourse to CS1

Certain of CSI's subsidiaries have entered into term debt facilities and revolving credit facilities with various financial
institutions. CS| does not guarantee the debt of these subsidiaries, nor are there any cross-guarantees between
subsidiaries. The credit facilities are collateralized by substantially all of the assets of the borrowing entity and its
subsidiaries. The credit facilities typically bear interest at a rate calculated using an interest rate index plus a margin.
The financing arrangements for each subsidiary typically contain certain restrictive covenants, which may include
limitations or prohibitions on additional indebtedness, payment of cash dividends, redemption of capital, capital
spending, making of acquisitions and sales of assets. In addition, certain financial covenants must be met by those
subsidiaries that have outstanding debt.

As a result of an amendment to the Topicus Revolving Credit Facility, the Company is required to repay a EUR 60
Term loan in 2023 which was originally due in 2028. The loan has heen classified as a current liability as of
December 31, 2022.

During the 2022, the Company breached its debt covenants associated with four Term loans in its subsidiaries.
The aggregate value of the loans at December 31, 2022 is $56 and these loans have been classified as a current
liability. The breaches related to non-recurring items and are expected to be resolved in 2023.

Debt without recourse to CSI comprises the following:

Topicus Revolving Credit

TFacility Debt Facilitics Total
Principal outstanding at December 31, 2022 (and equal to fair value) 139 § 773 912
Deduct: Carrying value of iransaction costs ineluded in debt balance (3) (8) (11)
Carrying value at December 31, 2022 136 766 902
Current portion 136 180 316
MNon-citrent portion - 586 580

38



CONSTELLATION SOFTWARE INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(In millions of U.S. dollars or specified currency, except per share amounts and as otherwise indicated.)
{Due to rounding, numbers presented may not foct.)

Years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

The expected annual minimum repayment requirsments for the debt facilities without recourse to CSI {excluding
the Topicus revolving credit facility) are as follows:

Year Debt Facilities
2023 179
2024 47
2025 183
2026 84
2027 278
2028 1
2029 1
2030 0
773

12. Redeemable Preferred Securities

in conjunction with the acquisition of Topicus.com B.V. in 2021, Topicus Coop issued 5,842,882 Topicus Coop
Preference Units to lissel B.V. The Topicus Coop Preference Units were non-vating and prior to the Notification of
Conversion were redeemable at the option of the holder for a redemption price of approximately EUR 19.06 per
unit. The redemption price would have either been settled in cash or through the issuance of a variable number of
Tapicus Coop Ordinary Units. The number of Topicus Coop Ordinary Units would have been determined based on
the terms of the Topicus Coop Preference Units. The Topicus Coop Preference Units were convertible into Topicus
Coop Ordinary Units (note 18} at a conversion ratio of 1:1. The Topicus Coop Preference Unit holders werz entitled
to a fixed annual cumulative dividend of 5% per annum on the initial Topicus Coop Preference Unit value of
approximately EUR 19.06 per unit.

On February 1, 2022, the Topicus Coop Preference Units were converted to Topicus Coop Ordinary Units.

13. Provisions

At January 1, 2022 $ 21
Reversal (1¥
Provisions recorded during the period 17
Provistons used during the peried (15
Eflect of movements in foreign exchange and other )
At December 31, 2022 $ 21
Provisions classified as current liabilities 11
Provisions classified as other non-current liabilities 10
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The provisions halance is comprised of various individual provisions for severance costs and other estimated
liabilities of the Company of uncertain timing or amount.

14. Lease obligations

The following table presenis the expected maturity of the undiscounted cash flows for lease obligations as at
December 31, 2022:

December 31,

2022
Tess than 1 year $ 101
Between I and 5 years 196
More than 5 years 42
Total 3 339
Less: Impact of discounting (26)
Leases obligation recorded on balance sheet $ 313

The expense relating to variable lease payments not included in the measursment of lease obligations was $8
(2021 - $6). This consists primarily of variable lease payments for property taxes. Expenses relating to short-term
leases were $9 (2021 - $7}, expenses relating to leases of low value assets were $1 (2021 - $1) and sublease
income was $2 (2021 - $1). Total cash outflow for leases was $124 (2021 - $106).
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15. Income taxes

(@) Tax recognized in profit or loss

2022 2021
Income tax recognized in profit or loss
Current income tax expense (recovery)
Gurrent year 399 253
Adjustment for prior years 3 3
403 257
Deferred income tax expense (recovery)
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (216) (48)
Effect of change in future tax rates 4 9
Change in recognized temporary differences and unrecognized tax losses (1) (18)
Adjustment for prior years (8) 4
(228) (51)
Income tax expense (recovery) 175 206
{b) Reconciliation of effective tax rate
022 2021
Net income for the year 551 159
Income tax expense 175 206
Income hefore income taxes 725 374
Income tax expense using the Company's statutory tax rate of 26.5% (2021 - 26.5%) 192 99
Impact on taxes from:
Foreign tax rate differential (20) (19}
Other, including non-deduct ble expenses and non-taxable income 12 50
Redeemable preferred securities expense which Is not deductible for tax purposes - 78
Change in recognized temporary differences and unrecognized tax lossas 1) (18}
Effect of changs in fulure tax rates {4 9
Adjustment for prior years (4} 7
175 206

Constellation is subject to tax audits in the countries in which the Company does business globally. These tax
audits could result in additional tax expense in future periods relating to historical filings. Reviews by tax authorities
generally focus on, but ars not limited to, the validity of the Company’s inter-company transactions, including
financing and transfer pricing policies which generally involve subjective areas of taxation and a significant degree
of judgment. If any of these tax authorities are successful with their challenges, the Company’s income tax expense
may be adversely affected and Constellation could also be subject {o interest and penalty charges.
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16. Deferred tax assets and liabilities

(a) Unrecognized deferred tax liabilities

The aggregate amount of temparary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries for which we have not
recognized deferred tax liabilities is $1,226 (2021: $878) as the Company ultimately controls whether the liability
will be incurred and it is satisfied that it will not be incurred in the foresesable future. The temporary differences
relate to undistributed earnings of the Company's subsidiaries. Dividends declared would be subject to withholding
tax in the range of 0-15% depending on the jurisdiction of the subsidiary.

(b} Unrecognized deferred tax assets

2022 2021
Deductible temporary differences, including capital losses 3 183 5 230
Non-capital tax losses $ 476 3 427

Non-capital tax losses of $288 expire between 2023 and 2042 and $187 can be carried forward indefinitely. Included
in the non-capital tax losses expiring between 2023 and 2042 is $141 of losses that are not expected to be used to
offset future taxable profit as a result of legislative restrictions in the jurisdiction where those losses exist. The
deductible temporary differences and capital losses do not expire under current tax legislation. Deferred tax assets
have not been recognized in respect of those items because it is not probable that future taxable profit wilt be
available in those jurisdictions against which the Company can utilize these benefits.

{c) Recognized deferred tax assets and liabilities

Assets Liahilities Net
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

Proparty, plani and equipment 7 a8 ®) @ 2) K]
Intangible assots 123 118 B74) (539) {51 423)
Resenes S0 25 &) & L] 20
Mon-capital loss carryforwards a1 53 - - 81 53
Research and dewelopment expenditures 108 1 - [} 108 1
Delered revenue 31 20 @ @ 28 20
Foreign and other tax credits 7 0 {&) 4y 1 4y
Oiher, including capital losses, wilhholding tax and forelgn exchange 12 7 (35 [£15)] 2% 29
Tax assets {liabilitles) 419 228 (730) (598) (312) (370)
Reclassification {259) {i62) 259 182 - -
Net tax assels (liabllities) 160 €5 @71y (426) (312) B70)

This reclassification relates to the offsetting of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities to the extent that
they relate to the same taxing authorities and there is a legally enforceable right to do so.
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{d) Movement in deferred tax balances during the year

Recognizad in
Balance other Acquired in Balance
January 1, Recognized in profit  comprehensive business December 31,
2022 or loss income combinations Other 2022

Property, plant and equipment 3 1 - &) - 2)
Intangihle assets {423) 135 (282) 17 (651)
Raseres 20 19 8 - 48
Non-capital loss camyforwards 53 - - 27 - 81
Rasearch and development sxpenditures 1 98 - ¢ - 106
Deferred revenus 20 {45y 54 - 28
Tax credits L] 8 - (3) - 1
Qther, including capital lesses and withholding tax {39) 12 - 8 2} (23)

(370) 228 - (186) 18 (312)

Recognized in
Balance other Acguired in Balance
January 1,  Recognized inprofit  comprehensive business December 31,
2021 ar loss income combinations Other 2021

Property, plant and equipment 2 il @ - 3
Intangible assets (281) 38 - (214) 14 (423)
Reserves 18 1 - 1 - 20
Non-capital loss canyforwards az 9 - 12 - 53
Rasaearch and development expenditures {8) 9 - o] - 1
Defered revenue 16 3 - 0 - 20
Tax credits 5) 1 - o)} B )
Other, including capital lesses, withhelding tax and foreign exchange (27) {11} - ¢ - {39)

(233) &1 - (201) 14 {370y

17. Capital and other components of equity

Capital Stock

At December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, the authorized share capital of Constellation consisted of an
unlimited number of voting common shares and a limited number of non-voting preferred shares (there are no

preferred shares outstanding.

Common Shares

Number

Amount

December 31, 2022

December 31, 2021

21,191,530 S

21,191,530 S

99

99

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)

Accumulated other comprehensive income {loss) is comprised of the following separate components of equity:
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Cumulative transfation account

The cumulative translation account comprises all foreign currency differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations, as well as foreign exchangs gains and losses arising from monetary
items that form part of the net investment in the foreign operation.

Amounts related to derivatives designated as hedges

The portion of the gain or loss on derivatives designated as hedges that are determined to be an effective hedge
are recognized directly in other comprehensive incoms (loss), and the ineffective portion in the statement of income
(loss). The gains or losses deferred in other comprehensive income (loss) in this way are subsequently recognized
in the statement of income (loss) in the same period in which the hedged underlying transaction or firm commitment
is recognized in the statement of income (loss).

Dividends

During the three months ended March 31, 2021, the Company declared a $1.00 per share dividend to all common
shareholders of record at close of business on March 18, 2021. The dividend declared in the quarter ended March
31, 2021 representing $21 was paid and settled on April 9, 2021. During the three months ended June 30, 2021,
the Company declared a $1.00 per share dividend to all common shareholders of record at close of business on
June 19, 2021. The dividend declared in the quarter ended June 30, 2021 representing $21 was paid and settled
on July 10, 2021, During the three months ended September 30, 2021, the Company declared a $1.00 per share
dividend to all common sharehelders of record at close of business on September 17, 2021, The dividend declared
in the quarter ended September 30, 2021 representing $21 was paid and settled on October 8, 2021. On November
4, 2021 the Company declared a $1.00 per share dividend to all common shareholders of record at close of business
on December 20, 2021. The dividend declared in the quarter ended December 31, 2021 representing $21 was paid
and settled on January 11, 2022.

During the three months ended March 31, 2022, the Company declared a $1.00 per share dividend to all common
shareholders of record at close of business on March 16, 2022. The dividend declared in the quarter ended March
31, 2022 representing $21 was paid and settled on April 12, 2022. During the three months ended June 30, 2022,
the Company declared a $1.00 per share dividend to all common shareholders of record at close of business on
June 20, 2022. The dividend declared in the quarter endad June 30, 2022 representing $21 was paid and settled
on July 11, 2022. During the three months ended September 30, 2022, the Company declared a $1.00 per share
dividend to all commaon shareholders of recard at close of business on September 20, 2022, The dividend declared
in the quarter ended September 30, 2022 representing $21 was paid and settled on October 11, 2022. During the
three months ended December 31, 2022, the Company declared a $1.00 per share dividend to all comman
shareholders of record at close of business on December 20, 2022. The dividend declared in the quarter ended
December 31, 2022 representing $21 was paid and settled on January 11, 2023,

On Decamber 18, 2020, the Company declared a special dividend pursuant to which all common shareholders of
record on December 28, 2020 of the Company were entitled to receive, by way of a dividend-in-kind, 1.859817814
Topicus Subordinate Voting Shares for each Constellation Software Inc. share held. The dividend was distributed
on January 4, 2021.
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18. Finance and other expense {income) and finance costs

Yearended December 31,

2022 2021
Interest income on cash $ ns @
(Increase) decrease in the fair value ofequity securities held for trading 16 2)
Share in net {income) loss of equity investee 0 {1
Finance and other income (15) 2)
Finance and other expense (income) % 0% {h
interest expense on debt and debentures $ 785 A4
Interest expense on lease obligations 10 5
Amortization of debt related transaction costs 5 2
Amortization of debenture discount (premium) and asscciated rights offering, net - (1)
Other finance costs i7 13
Finance costs b 110§ 68

19. Earnings per share

Basic and diluted earnings per share

Year ended December 31,

2022 2021
Numerator:
Net income (loss) attributable to common shareholders of CSI b3 512 % 310
Denominator:
Basic and diluted shares outstanding 21,191,530 21,191,530
Earnings per share
Basic and diluted $ 2418 § 14.65

20. Capital risk management

The Company's objectives in managing capital are {o ensure sufficient liquidity to pursue its strategy of organic
growth combined with strategic acquisitions and to provide returns to its shareholders. The Company manages its
capital with the objective of ensuring that there are adequate capital resources while maximizing the return to
shareholders through the optimization of the debt and equity bafance. The capital structure of the Company consists
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of cash, Debt with recourse to CS|, Debt without recourse to CSI, and components of shareholders' equity including
retained earnings and capital stock.

The Company is subject fo certain covenanis on its CSI facility. The covenants include a leverage ratio and an
interest coverage ratio. The Debt without recourse to CSI is also subject to certain covenants. The Company
monitors the ratios on a quarterly basis. As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, other than disclosed in note 11, the
Company is in compliance with its debt covenants. Other than the covenants required for the CSI facility and the
Debt without recourse to CSI, the Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

The Board of Directors determine if and when dividends should be declared and paid based on all relevant
circumstances, including the desirability of financing further growth of the Company and its financial position at the
relevant time. The Board of Directors has adepted a policy to pay quarterly dividends, which commenced in 2012.
Constellation intends to declare a regular quarterly dividend to allow shareholders to participate in its free cash flow,
while retaining sufficient capital to invest in acquisitions and organic growth. There is no guarantee that dividends
will continue to be declared and paid in the future.

The Company makes adjustments to its capital structure in light of general economic conditions, the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets and the Company's working capital requirements. In order to maintain or
adjust its capital structure, the Company, upon approval from its Board of Directors, may increase or decrease
dividends, increase or decrease the line of credit or undertake other activities as deemed appropriate under the
specific circumstances. The Board of Directors reviews and approves any material transactions not in the ordinary
course of business, as well as significant acquisitions and other major investments ahove pre-determined
quantitative thresholds.

21. Financial risk management and financial instruments
Overview

The Company is exposed to risks of varying degrees of significance which could affect its ability to achieve its
strategic objectives for growth. The main objectives of the Company's risk management process are to ensure that
risks are properly identified and that the capital base is adequate in relation to those risks. The principal financial
risks to which the Company is exposed are described below.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in markst prices, such as fluctuations in foreign exchange rates and interest
rates, will affect the Company's income or the value of its financial instruments.

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk on the utilized portion of its CSl facility and its Debentures and does
not currently hold any financial instruments that mitigate this risk. If there was a 1% increase in the interest rate on
the Debentures, there would be a corresponding decrease in income before tax of $2. There would be an equal
and opposite impact if there was a 1% decrease in the interest rate. If there was a 1% increase in the interest rate
on the utilized portion of the CSI Facility, there would be a corresponding decrease in income before tax of $3.
There would be an equal and opposite impact if there was a 1% decrease in the interest rate.

The Company is also exposed to interest rate risk on the utilized portion of the Debt without recourse to CSl. If
there was a 1% increase in the interest rate on the Debt without recourse to CSI, there would be a corresponding
decrease in income before tax of $9. There would be an equal and opposite impact if there was a 1% decreass in
the interest rate.
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The Company operates internaticnally, giving rise to exposure io market risks from changes in foreign exchange
rates which impact sales and purchases that are denominated in a currency other than the respective functional
currencies of certain of its subsidiaries. The Company currently does not typically use derivative instruments to
hedge its exposure to those risks. Most of the Company's businesses are organized geographically so that many
of its expenses are incurred in the same currency as its revenues thus mitigating some of its exposure te currency
fluctuations.

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis:

Foreign currency risk arises on financial instruments that are denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency in which they are measured. The Company's primary exposure with respect to foreign currencies is
through the Canadian dollar denominated Debentures (nete 10) and the Euro denominated IRGA Liability (note 10).
The carrying value of the Debentures at December 31, 2022 is $208 (C$282) (December 31, 2021 - §222 (C$282)).
If there was a 1% strengthening of the Canadian dollar against the U.S. dollar, there would be a corresponding
decrease in income before income taxes of $2. There would be an equal and opposite impact if there was a 1%
weakening of the Canadian dollar against the U.S. dollar. The carrying value of the IRGA Liability as at Decamber
31, 2022 is $465 (EUR 435). If there was a 1% strengthening of the EUR against the U.S. dollar, there would be a
corresponding decrease in income before income iaxes of $5. There would be an equal and opposite impact if
there was a 1% weakening of the EUR dollar against the U.S. dollar.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company is not able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due or can do so
only at excessive cost. The Company manages liquidity risk through the management of its capital structure and
financial leverage, as outlined in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements. The Company's growth is
financed through a combination of cash flows from operations and borrowing under the Debt with recourse to CSl
and Debt without recourse to CSIl. One of the Company's primary goals is to maintain an optimal level of liguidity
through the active management of the assets and liabilities as well as the cash flows from operations. The details
of the Company's Debt with recourse to CSI and Debt without recourse to CSI are disclosed in note 10 and note 11
to the consolidated financial statements. As at December 31, 2022, available credit in respect of the Company's
CSI facility was $366.

The majority of the Company's financial liabilities recorded in accounts payable and accrued liabilities are due within
60 days. The Company alsc has payment processing liabilities which are settled within a few days of year-end.
Included in cash is an equivalent cash balance of $25 (December 31, 2021 - $15) that is held to settle these payment
processing liabilities as they become due. Holdbacks payable related to business acquisitions are generally
payable within six months to two years.

Given the Company's available liquid resources and credit capacity as compared to the timing of the payments of
liabilities, the Company assesses its liquidity risk to be low.

Credit risk

Credit risk represents the financial loss that the Company would experience if a counterparty to a financial
instrument, in which the Company has an amount owing from the counterparty failed to meet its obligaticns in
accordance with the terms and conditions of its contracts with the Company. The carrying amount of the Company's
financial assets, including receivables from cusiomers, reprasents the Company's maximum credit exposure.
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The majority of the accounts receivable balance relates to maintenance invoices to customers that have a history

of payment. In addition, a large propertion of the Company's accounts receivable are with public sector government
agencies where the credit risk has historically been assessed to be low.

The maximum exposure to credit risk for accounts receivable at the reporting date by geographic region was:

December 31, December 31,

2022 2021

United States 3 442§ 228
Canada 65 56
United Kingdom 89 73
Europe 187 192
Other 93 50
3 876 § 600

The aging of accounts receivables at the reporting date was:

December December
31,2022 31,2021

Current
Gross $ 724 % 516
Impairment (5) (€3]
Net 720 513
90-180 days
Gross 112 64
Impairment (&) (1)
Net 105 63

Mote than 180 days

Gross 122 33
Impairment (70) (28)
Net 52 25

Total accounts receivable

Gross h 958 § 632
Impairment (82) (32)
MNet 876 600
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An allowance account for accounts receivable is used to record impairment losses unless the Company is satisfied
that no recovery of the amount owing is possible; at which point the amounts are considered to be uncollectible and
are written off against the specific acccunts receivable amount attributable to a customer. The number of days
outstanding of an individual receivable balance is the ksy indicator for determining whether an account is at risk of
being impaired.

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of accounts recsivable during the year ended:

2022 2021
Aggregate balance at January 1 ‘ $ 32§ 34
Increase fiom business acquisitions 75 10
Impairment loss recognized 27 19
Impairment loss reversed (14} (18)
Amounts written off (39) (12)
Other movements 1 (H
Aggregate balance at December 31 § 82 % 32
Allowance for doubtful accounts arising from business combinations $ 48 § 11

There is no concentration of credit risk because of the Company's diverse and disparate number of customers with
individual receivables that are not significant to the Company on a consolidated basis. In addition, the Company
typically requires up front deposits from customers to protect against credit risk.

The Company manages credit risk related to cash by maintaining the majority of the Company's bank accounts with
Schedule 1 banks.

In the ordinary course of business, the Company and its subsidiaries have provided performance bonds and other
guarantees for the completion of certain customer contracts.  The Company has not experienced a loss to date
and future losses are not anticipated; therefore, no liability has been recorded in the consolidated statements of
financial position related to these types of indemnifications or guarantees at December 31, 2022.

Fair values versus carrying amounts

The carrying values of cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable, accrued liabilities, dividends payable, the
majority of acquisition holdbacks, and the CSI Facility, approximate their fair values due to the short-term nature of
these instruments. The carrying value of the debt without recourse to CSI approximate their fair values as the debi
is subject to market interest rates. The carrying value of the IRGA liability and the Term Loan with recourse to Cal
approximates fair value.

Reconciliation of cash flows from financing activities

The following table reconciles the changes in cash fiows from financing activities for certain liabilities that are
outstanding as at December 31:
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Debt with Debt without
recourse to C81  recorse to CSI  Lease liability Dividends
Balance at January 1, 2022 5 704 414§ 270 % 22
Reclassification of deferred financing foes from other asseis ) - - -
Increase {decrease) in Topicus revolving credit debt facility without recourse to C8! - 91 - -
Pinceeds from issuance of debt under facilities without recourse to CSI - 476 - -
Repayments of debt under facilities without recourse to CSI - {102y - -
Increase (decrease) in the CSI facility 32 - - -
Payments of lease obligations - - (94) R
Other financing activities - 2 -
Dividends paid - - - [E5))]
Distribution to the Joday Group (13) - - -
Credit facility transaction costs - (N - -
Total financing cash flow activities 209 460 (94) (85)
Liabilities assumed in acquisitions - 42 - -
Amortization of debt related transaction costs 0 5 - -
IRGA liability revaluation charge 12 - - -
New leases, net of terminations and modifications - - 156 -
Dividends declared " - - 85
Foreign exchange loss (gain) and other movements (33) 0 » (%))
Foreign currency trans lation differences from foreign operations [$] (19) {14} -
Total financing non-cash activitics H 28 138 85
Balance atf Decenmber 31,2022 $ 1,072 § 902§ 33 3 21
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Years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

Debt with Debt without
recourse to CSI recorseto CSI Lease liability Dividends
Balance at January 1,2021 $ 534 % 227§ 275 % 21
Reclassification of deferred financing fees from other assets 1 - - -
Increase {decrease) in revelving credit under debt facilities without recourse to CSI - 30 - -
Progeeds fromissuance of tenmdebt under facilities without recovurse to CSI - 176 - “
Repayments of term debt under facilities without recourse to CSI - {6) - -
Increase (decrease) in the CSI facility - - - -
Payiments of lease obligations - - (33) -
Dividends paid - - - (85)
Distribution to the Joday Group (22) - - -
Credit facility transaction costs {n (5) - -
Total Anancing cash flow activities (23) 196 {83) (85)
Amnortization of debt discounts and premiums )] - - -
Liabilities assmmed in acquisitions 90 1 - -
Amortization of debt related transaction costs . 2 - -
IRGA liability revaluation charge 132 - - -
New leases, net of tenminations and moditications - - 87 -
Dividends declared - - - 85
Foreign oxchange loss {gain) (24) - ()] 0
Foreign currency translation differences from foreign eperations {5) (12) (16) -
Total financing non-cash activities 193 &3] 77 85
Balance at December 31, 2021 3 704 % 414§ 27 % 22

Fair value hierarchy
The table below analyzes financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method.

e |evel 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,

e level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included in level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability either directly {i.e. prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

¢ level 3 inputs are inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e.
unchservable inputs).

In the table below, the Company has segregated all financial assets and liabilifies that are measured at fair value
into the most appropriate lavel within the fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used to determine the fair value
at the measurement date.

Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value as at December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021
in the financial statements are summarized below. The Company has no additional financial liabilities measured at
fair value initially other than those recognized in connection with business combinations.
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December 31,2022 December 31, 2021
Level 1 Level 2 Tevel 3 Total Levell Lewel2 Level 3 Total
Assets:
Equity securities held for trading $ 155 - 8 - 8 115 $ 35 - % - 8 39
115 - - 115 39 - - 39
Liabilities:
Redeemable preferred securities $ - % - % - % - 5 - 5 - 3 7% 7
Contingent consideration - - 157 157 - - 104 104
- - 157 157 - - 110 110

There were no transfers of fair value measurements between level 1, 2 and level 3 of the fair value hierarchy in the
years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021,

The following table shows a reconciliation from the beginning balances to the ending balances for fair value
measurements in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

Contingent Consideration

Balance at January 1, 2022 ’ 104
Increase from business acquisitions 53
Cash recoveries (payments) (44
Charges through profit or loss 45
Foreign exchangs and other movements )]
Balance at December 31, 2022 157
Contingent consideration classified as current liabilities 48
Contingent consideration classified as other non-current liabilities 109

Estimates of the fair value of contingent consideration is performed by the Company on a quarterly basis. Key
unobservable inputs include revenue growth rates and the discount rates applied (7% to 11%). The estimated fair
value increases as the annual growth rate increases and as the discount rate decreases and vice versa.
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Redeemable Preferred Securities

Balance at January 1, 2022 $ 7
Foreign exchange and other movements (0)
Payments (7)

Balance at December 31, 2022 -

Estimates of the fair value of the Redeemable Preferred Securities were performed by the Company on a
guarterly basis up to the Notification of Conversion date. Key unobservable inputs include expected volatility and
credit spread of the Topicus Preferred Shares. The estimated fair value increases as the expected volatility
increases. The estimated fair value decreases as the cradit spread increases. The key observable input is the
subordinated voting share price of Topicus.com Inc. As the Topicus.com Inc. subordinate voting share price
increases, the fair value of the Redeemabie Preferred Securities increases. Subsequent to the Notification of
Conversion, the principal portion of the redeemable preferred securities has been reclassified to equity (non-
controlling interest).

22. Revenue

The following tables provides information about unbilled revenue (contract asset) and deferred revenue (contract
liability).

Unbilled Revenue:

2022 2021
At January 1 $ 150 % 102
Increase from business acquisitions 102 34
Decrease fiom transfers to accounts receivable (888) (409)
Increase from changes as aresult ofthe measure of progress 916 427
Foreign exchange and other movements (5) 3
At December 31 $ 275 % 150
Unbilled revenue classified as a cutrent asset $ 230§ 140
Unbilled revenue classified as a other non-current asset 44 10
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Deferred Revenue:

2022 2021
At January 1 5 1,209 §$ 1,005
Increase frombusiness acquisitions 366 165
Decrease fromrevenue recognized that was included in the
deferred revenue balance at the beginning of the period (1.073) (889)
Decrease fiom revenue recognized that arose from acquired
deferred revenue balances in the current year (345) e
Increase due to cash received, excluding amounts recognized as
revenue during the period 1,474 1,043
Foreign exchange and other movements (48) (18)
At December 31 $ 1,584 % 1,209
Deferred revenue classified as a current liability 1,484 1,158
Deferred revenue classified as a other non-current liability 100 52

The amount of revenue recognized in the year ended December 31, 2022 from performance obligations satisfied
in previous periods was $13 (December 31, 2021 - $6).

Revenue allocated to remaining performance obligations represents contracted revenue that has not yet been
recognized (“contracted not yet recognized”) and includes unearned revenue and amounts that will be invoiced and
recognized as revenue in future periods. Contracted not yet recognized revenue was approximately $3,400 as of
December 31, 2022, of which we expect to recognize an estimated 72% of the revenue over the next 12 months
and the remainder thereafter.

Costs to obtain a contract with a customer:

The Company has capitalized and amortized incremental commission costs on a systematic basis, consistent with
the pattemn of transfer of the good(s) or service(s) to which the commission relates as the Company believes these
costs are recoverable. The total capitalized commission costs as of December 31, 2022 is $127 (December 31,
2021 - $112). The amount of amortization expense for the year ended December 31, 2022 was $18 (December
31, 2021 - $18) and there was no impairment loss in relation to the costs capitalized.

23. Operating segments

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn
revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the
Company's other components. The operating results of ali operating segments are reviewed regularly by the
Company's President to make decisions about resources tc be allocated to the segment and assessing their
performance.
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The Company consists of six operating segments being, Volaris, Harris, Topicus, Vela, Jonas and Perseus. Each
of the Company’s operating segments operate essentially as mini Consteliations, conglomerates of small vertical
market software companies with similar economic characteristics. Each operating segment CEQ is focused on
investing capital that generates returns at or above the investment hurdle rates set by CSI's head office (primarily
the President) and the Board of Directors, irrespective of whether the acquired business operates primarily in the
public or private sector. The Company aggregates the six operating segments intc one reportable segment,
consistent with the objective and basic principies of IFRS 8.

Geographical information

The Company is managed on a worldwide basis, but operates in three principal geographical areas, Canada,
USA, and UK/Europe.

In presenting the geographical information, revenue is based on the region in which the revenue is transacted,
and intellectual property is located. Assets are based on the geographic locations of the assets.

Year ended December 31,2022 Canada USA  UK/Europe Other Total
Revenue $ 661 & 2,923 § 2,161 § 876 % 6,622
Non-curtent assets Y] 2,043 1,992 778 5,422
Year ended December 31,2021 Canada USA UK/Europe Other Total
Revenue $ 578 % 2,037 § 1945 § 546§ 5,106
Non-current assets 584 1,284 1,688 375 3,931
Major customers

No customer represents revenue in excess of 5% of total revenue in both the years ended December 31, 2022
and 2021.

24. Contingencies

In the normal course of operations, the Company is subject to litigation and claims from time to time. The Company
may also be subject to lawsuits, investigations and other claims, including environmental, labour, income and sales
tax, product, customer disputes and other matters. The Company believes that adequate provisions have been
recorded in the accounts where required. Although it is not always possible to estimate the extent of potential costs,
if any, the Company believes that the ultimate resolution of such contingencies will not have a material adverse
impact on the results of operations, financial position or liquidity of the Company.
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25. Guarantees

(@)

()

In the ordinary course of business the Company and its subsidiaries have provided performance bonds,
letters of credit issued that do not limit the borrowing capacity of the CSl Facility, and other guarantees for
the completion of certain custemer contracts and other contracts in the normal course of operations. The
total obligations of the Company pursuant to such bonds and related contingencies total $97 (2021 - $80).
No liability has been recorded in the consolidated financial statements.

As at December 31, 2022, in the normal ccurse of businass, the Company has ouistanding letters of credit
under the CSI Facility totalling $12 (2021 - $79) which limits the borrowing capacity of the CS| Fagcility on a
dollar-for-dollar basis.

In the normal course of businass, some of the Company's subsidiaries entered into lease agreements for
facilities. As the joint lessees, the subsidiaries agres to indemnify the lessor for liabilities that may arise
from the use of the leased facility. The maximum amount potentially payable under the foregoing indemnity
cannot be reasonably estimated. The subsidiaries have liability insurance that relates to the
indemnifications.

The CGompany and its subsidiaries have provided routine indemnifications to some of its customers against
liability if the Company's product infringes on a third party's intellectual property rights. The maximum
exposure from the indemnifications cannot be reasonably estimated.

26. Changes in non-cash operating working capital

Year ended
December 31,
2022 2021

Decrease (increase) in current accounts receivable $ 8 % (22)
Decrease {increase) in current unbilled revenue (23} (13)
Decrease (increase) in other current assets (43) (39
Decrease (increase) in inventories ' ) 1
Decrease (increase) in other non-current assets (35) (16)
Increase (decrease) in other non-current liabilities (5 o)
Increase {decrease) in current accounts payable and accrued liabilities,

excluding holdbacks from acquisitions 73 80
Increase {decrease) in current deferred revenue 66 55
Increase (decrease) in current provisions (1 (n
Change in non-cash operating working capital ¥ (60 $ 45
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27. Related parties
Transactions with companies associated with key management personnef

The Company has entered into certain agreements primarily for the provision of hosting services with companies
that are affiliated with Robin van Poelje, the CEO of the Topicus Operating Group. For the year ended December
31, 2022, the Company expensed $2 (December 31, 2021 - $1) relating to these agreements, included primarily
included within “Third party license, maintenance and professional services® expenses. The payable as at
December 31, 2022 relating to these amcunts was $0 (included within “Accounts payable and accrued liabilities”)
(December 31, 2021 - $0).

Key management personnel compensation

The key management personnel of the Company, inclusive of the operating segments, are the members of the
Company's executive management team at the Company’s operating segments and head office and Board of
Directors.

Years ended December 31,
2022 2021

Salaries, bonus and employee benefits  $ 12 8 16

Total S 2 S 16

There were no significant post-employment benefits, other long-term benefits, or share-based payments attributed
ta the key management personnel in 2022 and 2021,

28. Non-controlling interests

The Company's significant non-controlling interests at December 31, 2022 were associated with Topicus, a
company whose operations are based in the Netherlands. Constellation’s equity interest in Topicus is 60.65%
(39.35% being non-controlling interest) as at December 31, 2022. On May 16, 2022, Topicus also acquired a
controlling interest of 72.68% in Sygnity S.A. {"Sygnity”), a Company based in Poland. The remaining 27.32%
represents non-controlling interest. The acquisition of Sygnity is outlined in note 4.

The following tables summarize the information relating to the Company's non-contrelling interests in Topicus before
and after intercompany gliminations:
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Non-centrolling Interest

Cumrent assets
Non-current assets
Total assets

Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Total liabilities

Less: Non-controlling interest of Topicus Cocp subsidaries, including interests held by CSi

Net assets after allocation of nen-controlling interests (including interests held by C8l)

Net assets allocated to the nen-controlling interests of Topicus
Add: Non-controlling interest of Topicus Coop subsidaries nol owned by CSI
Total non-controlling interest

Nen-<contralling interest

Current assets
Non-current asssts
Total assets

Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Total liabilities

Less: Non-controlling interest of Topicus subsidaries, including interests held by GSI
Less: Preference units of Topicus Ceop classified as noncentrolling interest

Net agsets

Neat assets allocated to the noa-controlling irterests of Topicus

Add: Noncontrolling interest of Topicus Coop subsidaries not owned by GS|
Add: Preference units of Topicus Coop classified as non-controfiing interest
Total non-contrelling interest

Rewenue

Expenses

Income {loss) before income taxes

income tax expense

Net income {loss) prior to non-controlling interest allocation

Less: Nen-controfling thterest of Tepicus Coop subsidaries, including interests beld by C51
Less: ncome allocated o Preference Units of Topicus Coop classified as non-contralling interest

Net income (loas) after allocation of nen-controlling interest of Topicus Coop subsidaries

MNet income (loss) attributable to nen-controlling interests of Topicus

Add: Neon-controffing interest of Topicus Coop subsidaries not awned by CSI

Add: Income allocated {0 Preference Units of Topicus Coop classified as non-controfling Interest
Total non-controlling interest
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Intra-Group
As at December 31, 2022 Eltminations Total
30.35%
33
1,054
1,385
810
278
B85
49
452 15 467
184
18
201
Intra-Group
As at December 31, 2021 Eliminations Total
6. 7%
228
938
1,166
452
311
783
24
432
{53) 90 37
28
2
432
460
Year ended Intra-Group
December 31, 2022 Eliminations Total
963
B53
110
18
92
0
1
91 [ 87
38
@)
1
38
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Year ended intra-Group
Decamber 31, 2021 Eliminations Total
Rewenus a77
Expenses 758
Redeemable prefared securities expenss {income) (notes 1 and 12) 2,737
Income {loss) before income taxes (2,617}
Income tax expanse 25
Net income (loss) prier to non-controlling interest allocation (2,643)
Less: Non-controlling interast of Topicus subsideries, including interests held by CS1 Z
Less: Income allocated to Preference Units of Togicus Coop classified as nen-controlling interest 4
Mat income {loss} after allocation of non-controlling interest of Topicus subsidaries and Preference Urits {2,648) 2,439 {209)
Net income {loss) aitributable to non-controlling interests of Topicus {146)
Add: Non-<controlling interest of Topicus Coop subsidaries not ewned by €SI 0
Add: Income allocated to Preference Units of Togicus Coop classified as non-controlling interest 4
Total non-controlling interest {142)

Financial information on the statement of cash flows for Topicus is as follows:

Year ended
December 31, 2022

Cash flows from {used in} operating activities 227

Cash flows fom (used in) financing acthities (13)

Cash flows from {used in} investing activities {140)
Year ended

December 31, 2021

Cash flows from {used in} operating activities 212
Cash fiows from (used in) in financing activties 66
Cash flows from {used in} inwesting activities (254)

On January 3, 2022, the Company also acquired a controlling interest of in Adapt IT Holdings Limited (*Adapt IT"),
a Company based in South Africa. The acquisition of Adapt IT is outlined in note 4. As of December 31, 2022, the
Company has an interest of 65.97% and the remaining 34.03% represents non-controlling interest in Adapt IT.

29, Subsequent events

On March 29, 2023, the Company declared a $1.00 per share dividend payable on April 14, 2023 to all common
shareholders of record at close of business on April 6, 2023.

Excluding the Wide Orbit acquisition outlined below, subsequent to December 31, 2022, the Company completed
or entered into agreements to acquire a number of businesses for aggregate cash consideration of $316 on closing
plus cash holdbacks of $32 and contingent consideration with an estimated fair value of $20 for total consideration
of $367. The business acquisitions include companies catering primarily to the marketing, financial services,
education, communications, field service, insurance, healthcare, daycare, metals, mining, forestry, construction,
logistics, and legal verticals and are all software companies similar to the existing business of the Company.
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On February 22 and 23, 2023 (as part of a series of transactions relating to the acquisition of WideOrbit Inc.
(“WideOrbit"} described further below), the Company's subsidiary, Lumine Group Inc. (*Lumine’), completed a
corporate reorganization. After the reorganization was completed, the Company now owns 1 super voting share,
6 subordinate voting shares and 63,582,712 preferred shares of Lumine. Furthermore, the Company distributed
63,582,706 of the subordinate voting shares to its common shareholders pursuant to a dividend-in-kind on February
23, 2022. The steps performed in conjunction with the reorganization consisted of the following:

« The Company exchanged its existing common shares and preferred shares in Lumine Group (Holdings)
Inc. (“Lumine Group Holdings") for 63,582,712 subordinate voting shares and 55,233,745 preferred shares
of Lumine on February 22, 2023.

« Lumine and Lumine Group Holdings amaigamated on February 22, 2023.

¢ The Company subscribed for 8,348,967 preferred shares of Lumine on February 22, 2023. The preferred
shares are convertible into subordinate voting shares of Lumine at a rate of 1:2.43.

e Lumine had 63,582,712 subordinate voting shares cuistanding on February 22, 2023. The Company
distributed 63,582,706 of the subordinate voting shares to its common shareholders pursuant to a dividend-
in<kind on February 23, 2022 and continues to hold 6 subordinate voting shares of Lumine.

« Under certain conditions, the preferrad shares are retractable at the option of the holder for a retraction
price of approximately $21.74 per preferred share. The holders of the preferred shares are aiso entitled to
a fixed annual cumulative dividend of 5% per annum.

» The Company holds 1 super voting share of Lumine. The super voting share entitles the holder to that
number of votes that equals 50.1% of the aggregate number of votes attached to all the outstanding super
voting shares, subordinate voting shares and special shares of Lumine. As a result, the Company controls
Lumine and will consolidate its financial position and results of operations with Lumine. The Company will
reflect a non-controlling interest held by other parties.

On February 23, 2023, the Company purchased 100% of the shares of WideOrbit, a US-based vertical market
software provider. Annual gross revenues of WideOrbit for 2022 were approximately $169. The gross purchase
price for the transaction was $490, subject to customary adjustments, as a result of, but not limited to, minimum
cash requirements of $10, target net indebtedness of $87, and claims under the representations and warranties of
the purchase agreement. The Company has the ability to reduce the cash portion of the purchase consideration by
$10 for net indebtedness up to $97. If net indebtedness is grester than $97, excess repayment would be funded by
the Company and added to the gross purchase price. Furthermore, Lumine issued 10,204,294 special shares of
Lumine to the sellers of WideOrbit for an initial subscription price of approximately $222 which will be included in
the purchase consideration. Under certain conditions, the spegial shares are retractable at the option of the holder
for a retraction price of approximately $21.74 per special share plus one subordinate voting share of Lumine for
each special share held and will be classified as a liability on the balance sheet of Lumine and the Company. The
special shares are also convertible into subordinate voting shares of Lumine at a conversion ratio of 1:3.43 at any
time. The holders of the special shares are also entitled to a fixed annual cumulative dividend of 5% per annum.
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RQITA3000221 04/0CT/2023

VENDOR? REQUISITIONER:
ASSETWORKS INC I DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECH
998 OLD EAGLE SCHOOL RD 240 OLD COUNTRY ROAD
SUITE 1215 6TH FLOOR
WAYNE PA 19087 MINEOLA NY 11501
8. BARNETT/JOE JACOVINA
TEL: (610)687-9202 TEL: (516)571-7732
FAaX: (610)971-9447 FAX: (516)571-3918

BILL TO: I.T. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
240 OLD COUNTRY ROAD 6TH FLOOR
MINEOLA, NY 11501
EMATL TO: ITACCOUNTINGENASSAUCOUNTYNY.GOV

T R R R R R e T T T

R N R - > B T i

BSTIMATED TOTAL: 109,386.64



PCHL9100 ADVANCED PURCHASING/INVENTORY 09/15/2023 9:05 AM
LINK TO: ELECTRONIC NOTE PAD PAGE 01 OF @1

REQ DOC INQUIRY 2140

SOLE SOURCE; LETTER PROVIDED; QUOTE: NO QUOTE NUMBER; VENDOR

EMAIL: MINDY,PAYNE@ASSETWORKS.COM/KEVIN,RAASCHOFACILITYFORCE. COM,

A) ANNUAL MAINTENANCE RENEWAL FOR THE ASSETWORKS FACILITY FORCE AIM
APPLICATION. TERM 8/1/2023 - 7/31/2024.

Bi ﬁ%99,386.64

E36D¥E¥20R IS THE SOLE SOURCE SUPPLIER OF MAINTENANCE & SUPPORT FOR THESE
E m?is SOFTWARE IS USED BY DPW FOR WORK TICKET TRACKING.

G) N/A

REFER TO POIT22000318/RQIT22900071

F1-HELP  F4-AUDIT  F5-TOP F6 COPY F7-PR PAGE F8-NX PAGE -
F9-LINK F10-SAVE F11-INS PAGE F12-DEL PAGE  ENTER-INQUIRE  CL-EXIT
INQUIRY COMPLETE



AssetWQRKS T ERSEE L Proposal

1000 Central Parkway N, Suite 269
San Antonio, TX 78232

To: Nassau County
Anthony (Tony} Marino

amarino@nassaucountny.qoy

From: AssetWorks Inc¢ / FacilityForce Ing
Kevin Raasch
kevin.raasch@faciltyforce.com

RE: Annual Program Renewal

FACILITYMAX 81123 - 7131124 $51,849.80
SPACE MANAGEMENT 8/1/23 - 7/31/24 $6,233.08
GIS INTEGRATION 8123 ~7/31/24 $4,155.9¢
ESTIMATING 8/1/23 - 731124 $4,155.9¢
LEASE MANAGEMEMNT 81123 - 7131124 $4,155.99
ENERGY MANAGEMENT 81/23 - 7131/24 $6,233.88
KP! 8/1/23 - 7/31/24 $4,155.69
AlM IQ 8/1/23 - 7/31/24 $17,327.43
FCA / PROJECT CONTRACT 811123 - 7131124 $8,333.74
AUTOMATED BUSINESS ENGINE 8/1/23 -7/31/24 $1,610.28
SDC - EMPLOYEE INBOUND 81123 - 7131/24 $1,073.50

This proposal is made stffect to the existing Contract Agreement between the parties. Includes product updates and
enhancements, uniimited phone and emafl support,

GRAND TOTAL, U$$, excluding any relevant sales and use t: $109,386.64
Notes
1 All amounts stated on this Schedule exclude any sales tax, duties or other third parly fees and/or taxes (where
applicable). Any taxes or fees due will be calculated and specified on the invoice.
2 All payments are NON-REFUNDABLE.
3 If paying by Credit Card andior P-Card, a 4.5% transaction fee will be processed along with invoice payment

|, the undersigned, intend to renew the maintenance plan described above.

Approval Name:

Approval Signature:

Title:

Date:

Send Invoice to:

Purchase Order Required for Payment: Yos No

Flease sign and retumn s Proposal or Purchase Order by email (G mindy.payne{@assetworks,Cam [N order 1o rensw your
software support. If you have any questicns regerding this proposal, or if the information listed above is incorrect, please contact
Mindy Payne at mindy.payne@assetworks.com




ASSGtWGR KS 1000 Central Pkwy N #269

San Antonio, TX 78232

September 8, 2023

To: Joseph Jacovina

Deputy Commissioner, Information Technology
Nassau County

Email: jlacovina@nassaucouniyny.gov

Phone: 516-571-7732

RE: AssetWorks 2023-24 Support Agreement
Joseph,

AssetWorks is the single developer and only licensed distributor of the AiM™ Suite of products. AssetWorks
does not distribute nor make available any of our products, training, or professional/implementation services
to any third party or partner for the purpose of reselling or maintaining this product. AssetWorks has a
trademark on file with the U.S. Paient & Trademark Office and, because software is intellectual property, it is
protected under U.S. copyright laws.

To ensure that we continue to meet your needs day after day and year after year, we provide comprehensive
customer support. Our support staff includes Technical Product Analysts who have many years of experience
with our customers in the implementation and systems acceptance of our solutions. We employ a
sophisticated problem tracking and notification system, guaranteeing that every request for assistance is
handled quickly and efficiently. Below is a brief overview of the support services offered:

Our support package includes:
s Product Upgrades/Updates
» Toll-free Telephone Support
e Online Support via email and the Customer Portal
s Technical Support Services
¢ Online Customer Resource Center

Please note that product upgrades/updates and professional services are only available through AssetWaorks.
The terms and conditions of the original Annual Support and Maintenance Agreement remain the same.

Thank you,

Kevin Raasch
Vice President | AssetWorks
800-659-9001 | kevin.raasch@assetweorks.cam




BRUCE BLAKEMAN
COUNTY EXECUTIVE

Nancy Stanton
COMMISSIONER

DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

September 19, 2023

TO: Robert Cleary, Chief Compliance Officer
Nassau County Dept. of Shared Services

Subject: RQIT23000221 Sole Source Confirming REQ Justification
Robert,

RQIT2300022 is for the annual maintenance renewal of the Assetworks Facility Force ATM
application used by all units within DPW for work ticket tracking. It is also used with the Nassau
Now smartphone app. The term date started on Aug. 1, 2023.The cost is $109,386.64.

Assetworks/Facility Force is the sole provider of the application and its maintenance. The sole
source letter is attached.

This is confirming REQ b/c the invoice was sent to Tony Marino’s (now retired) email address.
John Camacho just sent it to 1.T. last week. Joe Jacovina of LT. has already reached out to the
vendor to make sure that future quotes & invoices are sent directly to him to avoid this issue
going forward.

Please let I.T. know if anything further is needed to approve the creation of the P.O.

Thank you,
Susan

Susan Barnett, Clerk T
N.C. Dept. of Information Technology

240 OLD COUNTRY ROAD - MINEOLA, NEW YORK 11501 (516) 571-4311
Fax: (516) 571-3918
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILIVTY INSURANCE

DATE [MM/DD/YYYY)
0972812023

[

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER, THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

IMPORTANT! If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provislons or be endorsed.
it SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an andorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In ileu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER FONIAGT Mark Warren

Marsh Canada Limiled PHONE 175 349 4850 FAR

120 Bromner Blvd,, Sune 800 Altn Canadz Certrequest@marsh.com (AJC, No, Ext): {AC, No):

Toronio, ON, MBJ 0A eI 8 Mark. Warren@marsh.com

_ INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIG #

CN102165922-GAWUP-23-24 Asselw INSURER A : Fedsral lnsuranca Company 20281
INSURED . 03

CONSTELLATION SOFTWARE ING AND INSURER B : Great Northem Insurance Company 203

ASSETWORKS ING INSURER € : ACE Americen Insurance Company 22067

FACILITIES! FLEET DIVSION INSURER D1

998 OLD EAGLE SCHOQL RD :

WAYNE, PA 19087 INSURER E :

INSURER F :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:

HOU-003980551-07 REVISION NUMBER: 3

THIS 18 TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANGE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM CR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOGUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN 1S SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

ADDLSUBH] B EX
i) TYPE OF INSURANCE INSQ L AYD POLICY NUMBER LM_l\OMDD‘J(YYYY) tm}“[';%‘;{wy?q LIMITS
A GCOMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY 9950-48-39 0972772023 0972712024 EACH OGCURRENGE $ 4,000,000
DAWAGE TO RENTED
] CLAIMS-MADE L)i OCCUR PREMISES (Ea pocurrance | $ 1,000,000
L MED EXP (Any ohe person) $ 25,000
. , PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | 8 1,000,200
| GENL AGBREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE § 2,000,000
X | poLICY [_j s Loc PRODUGTS - COMPIOP AGG | $ 1,600,000
OTHER; $
B T ATTOMOBILE ABITFY TH00397 W02 (0w | GOMETED SWGEMMT |y 1,000,000
% | any auta BODILY INJURY (Per parson) | §
X .CA’L\?'T%ESDONLY X ig;‘gg‘-"—ED BODILY INJURY {Per accident)| §
% HIRED NOM-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE s
2 faurosonly | | auTos onty (Ber accidant}
3
A | X | UMBRELLALIAB | X | goguR 9365-24-30 09/27/2023 | 0912772024 EACH OCCURRENGE $ 9,000,060
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE| AGGREGATE $ 9,000,000
DED ! | RETENTION $ 5
C | WORKERS COMPENSATION 71764342 0972712023 0972712024 x | PER I OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN STATUTE ER ]
ANYPROPRIETOR/PARTNERIEXECUTIVE E.L. EACH AGCIDENT $ 1,000,000
OFFICERMMEMBER EXCLUDEQ? No[|ura el
(Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE] § 1,000,000
If yes, describe under 1000 OOH
DESGRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | 8 L0,
A | Professional Liability 54260768 09/27/2023 09/27/2024 Limit 5,000,000
Tach E&O & Cyber SIR 1,000,000

Please see addifional page
Nassau County as additional Insured

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS { LOGATIONS / VEHICLES {(ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schodule, may be attached If more space is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

NASSAU COUNTY

ATTN: OFFICE OF PURCHASING

2403 OLD COUNTRY ROAD, ROOM 307
MINEQOLA, NY 11501

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WIL. BE DELIVERED iN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
of Marsh USA LLC

POl arars BES i e

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2016 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD




AGENCY CUSTOMER ID: CN102165922

Loc #: Canada

; ' 4
ACORD ADDITIONAL REMARKS SCHEDULE Page 2 of 2
AGENGY NAMED INSURED
Marsh Canada Limited CONSTELLATION SOFTWARE INC AND
ASSETWORKS INC
POLICY NUMBER FACILITIES/ FLEET DIVSION
998 OLD EAGLE SCHOOL RD
WAYNE, PA 19087
CARRIER NAIC CODE

EFFECTIVE DATE:

ADDITIONAL REMARKS

FORM NUMBER: __ 25

THIS ADDITIONAL REMARKS FORM IS A SCHEDULE TO ACORD FORM,
FORM TITLE: Certificate of Liability Insurance

THE US COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY POLICY, US AUTOMOBILE POLICY, US WORKERS COMPENSATICN & EMPLOYER'S LIABILITY POLICY, AND TECHNOLOGY E&C LIABILITY POLICY
HAVE BEEN PLACED BY SERVICE OF MARSH USA INC. MARSH CANADA LIMITED HAS ONLY AGTED IN THE ROLE OF A CONSULTANT TO THE CLIENT WITH RESPECT TO THESE PLACEMENTS

WHICH ARE INDICATED HERE FOR YOUR CONVENIENCE.

ACORD 101 (2008/01)

© 2008 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



